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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NIRDHAN UTTHAN LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. (the 'Company’), which
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashadh 31, 2080, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
company as at Ashadh 31, 2080 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards {NFRSs).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ICAN’s Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our audit opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. Our assessed key audit matters and how we addressed them are outlined below:

Key Audit Matters | Auditor’s Response
i. Impairment of Loans & Advances
However, as per carve out on NFRS 9 provided by ICAN, the | Our audit approach regarding impairment of
company has assessed and measured impairment loss on loans | loans and advances included:
and advances as the higher of amount derived as per norms | e  Examination of loans and advances on

prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and sample basis including recovery

amount derived as per NFRS 9. ¢ Testing the design, existence and
Given the fact that the impairment of loans and advances under operating effectiveness of internal
para 63 of NAS 39 require assessment of future cash flows and controls on income recognition, loan
subsequent discounting to present value and impairment of classification and impairment

loans and advances under NRB norms require assessment of | e Testing controls on credit appraisal
various factors like overdue status along with other factors like process

utilization of loan, whereabouts of borrowers, etc. which has |«  Assessment of control over mortgage

certain limitations regarding availability of accurate information, and its calculation

this is considered as key audit matters. We considered the process to be adequate,

| fi. _Information Technology
The preparation of financial statement is highly dependent on Our audit approach regarding Information
various reports generated by Core Banking System of company. Technology included:

Adequate and appropriate IT controls are required to ensure |e Testing the design, operation and

that IT application processes the data as expected. Audit effectiveness of IT control

outcome is dependent on the extent of IT controls and systems, | e  Understanding the data input and output
and accordingly the above areas are determined to be as key system of CBS

audit matter. *  Review of output reports on sample basis

and its validation with source
We considered the IT system and its control
to be adequate.

ifi. Interest Income
Interest iIncome from customers has been recognized on | We applied following procedures in respect of
accrual basis as per the interest recognition guidelines of | Verification of interest income:
Nepal Rastra Bank / NFRS. Interest has been recognized s Understanding of the core banking
on accrual basis in case of performing loan. /&~ software of the company how

B \‘J
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Due to limitation of lack of system capability to review the interest rate on loans and advances

fair value of the collateral on regular basis, Manual has been implemented in system.

intervention might be required for the recognition of e Whether interest income Is

accrual of interest income. automatically  and accurately

As this may have effect on the recognition of the interest generated in the System.

income by company, we have considered it as Key zudit * Review of the accrued interest

matter. income whether relevant Financial

Reporting Framework and NRB
guidelines have beeh followed by
the company.

e Review manual intervention in
interest recognition .

e Understanding as to how the
company’s management Monitors
their business, analyse its credit
Portfolio and Interest income
thereon.

|- e Review whether legal remedies

| | against defaulting borrowers are

not adversely affected.

Accounting Policies and recognition of

interest income has been considered

adequate.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information.

The other information comprises the financial or non-financial information included in the annual report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available for
our review after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, we will consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is 8 material misstatement therein, we are required to
request management and those charged with governance to correct the material misstatement.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements in accordance with NFRSs,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not aguarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with N5As
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also: G A\
i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatemé_p“ f the ﬁhfa;e;ﬁ,al statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to thoseyr(sks, and ob ‘iri audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
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provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
contral.

i) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
On examination of the financial statements as aforesaid, we further report that:

i We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose for our audit.

ii. The accounts and records of the Bank has been mzintained as required by law.

iii. Financial statements are in agreemenl wilh the books of account maintained by the Bank.

v, The capital fund, risk bearing fund and the provision for possible impairment of asset of the Bank are
adequate as per the Directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.

. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the Board of
Directors, the representative or any employee of the Bank has not acted contrary to the provision of law
relating to accounts nor caused direct loss or damage to the Bank deliberately or acted in a manner that
would jeopardize the interest and security of the Bank.

vi. The operations of the Bank were within its jurisdiction.
vii. The Bank has not acted in a manner to jeopardize the interest and security of the depositors and investors.
viii.  The Bank has a centralized core accounting system. The details received from branches of the Bank, though

are independently not audited, were adequate for the purpose of our audit, and
X, We have not corne across any fraudulence in the accounts, so far as it appeared from our examination of the
book of accounts.

FCA Anish Gyawali
Partner

G &G Assegia@:—kﬁ%

UDIN 240111CAD1222yfILP
Place Kathmandu
Date 2080/09/26
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As on 31 Ashad 2080

Current Year Previous Year
Cash and Cash equivalent 4.1 1,822,432 593 1,0030,504 424
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 42 436,892,459 396,402.455
Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions 4.3
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4 -
Other Trading Assets 4.5 =
Loans and Advances to MFls & Cooperatives 4.6
Loans and Advances to Customers 4.7 24.312,643,330 27, 168,994,192
Investment Securities 4.8 293,510,000 293 510,000
Current Tax Assets 4.9 15,125,183 151,660,505
Investment Property 410 -
Property and Equipment 4.1 260,575,309 142,733,258
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.12
Deferred Tax Assets 413 416,371,747 163,219,532
Other Assets 4.14 304,684,898 273,929,961
Total Assets 27.922,235,520 20,621,044,327
Liabilities Current Year Previous Year
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.15 -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 416
Derivative Financial Instrument 4.17 - -
Deposits from Customers 4.18 19,114,293,315 18.182,829.522
Borrowing 4.19 3,046,721,839 6,289,339,000
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9
Provisions 420 14,590,102 14,648,322
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.13 =
Other Liabilities 421 154 855,890 506,605,415
Debt Sccurities Issued 422
Subordinated Liabilities 423 - -
Total Liabilities 23,230,461,146 24,993,422.259
Equity
Share Capital 4.24 2,612,079.750 2,195,025,000
Share Premium 10,111 310,111
Retained Earmings (357.515437) 487,303,543
Reserves 425 2,436.699.951 1.944.783.414
Total Equity 4,691,774,375 4,627,622,068
Total Liabilities and Equity 27,922,235,520 29,621,044,327
Contingent Liabilitics and Commitment 426 4,998,540 4,998,540
Net Assets Value per Share 179.62 210,82

As per our report of even date.

Hari Krishna Pant Santosh Kumar Bhattarai Niraj Kumar Basnet (Danil)
[Chairman) (Director) (Director)
Devendra Bahadur Raut Top Bahadur Rayamajhi Samrita Tiwari
[Director) [Director) {Director)
Krishna Kumar Pradhan Puskar Raj Subedi
[Director) [Manager)
FCA. Anish Gyawali
Partner, G & G Assaciates
Chartered Accountants
Narayan Bahadur Karki Mukesh Dahal Date: 11% Jan, 2024
(Asst. General Manager) [Act. Chief Executive Officer) Place: Kathmandu, Nepal.
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 Ashad 2080

Previous Year

Current Year

Interest Income

Interest Expense

Net Interest Income

Fee and Commission Income

Fee and Commission Expense

Net Fee and Commission Income

Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income

Net Trading Income

Other Operating Income

Total Operating Income

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses

Net Operating Income

Operating Expense

Personnel Expenses

Other Operating Expenses

Depreciation & Amortization

Operating Profit

Non Operating Income

Non Operating Expense

Profit before Income Tax

Income Tax Expense

Current Tax
Deferred Tax

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to :

Equity holders of the Financial Institution

Profit for the year

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share
Diluted eamings per share

4.27
4.28

4.29

4.30

4.31
4.32

4.34
435
4.36

4.37
4.38

4.39

3.960.779,572 3.943.594,350
2,001.935,036 1,827.324,305
1,958,844,536 2,116,270,046
141,507,149 282,721,513
5,769,078 1,863,754
135,738,072 280,857,760
2,094.582,608 2.397.127,.805
2.413,995 153,281
2,096.996,602 2,397,281,086
875,080,527 246,297,360
1,221,016,076 2,150,983,726
847 879,170 946,664,294
73,918,305 122,785,426
51,343,404 15,558.782
247.875,197 1,065.975,224
782,992 484,472
4,754,859 2,146,241
243,903,330 1,064,313,456
73,945,216 314,230,140
362,153,786 337,137,275
(288,208,570) (22.907,134)
169.958,114 750,083,315
169.958,114 750,083,315
169,958,114 750,083,315
6.51 34.17
6.51 34,17

Hari Krishna Pant
(Chairman)

Devendra Bahadur Raut

Narayan Bahadur Karki
(Asst. General Manager)

Santosh Kumar Bhattarai
(Director)

Top Bahadur Rayamajhi

(Director) (Director)
Krishna Kumar Pradhan Puskar Raj Subedi
(Director) (Manager)

Mukesh Dahal
[Act. Chief Executive Officer)

As per our report of even date.

Niraj Kumar Basnet (Danil)

(Director)

Samrita Tiwari
(Director)

FCA. Anish Gyawali
Partner, G & G Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date: 11th Jan, 2024
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal.
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 Ashad 2080

Particulars Note Current Year Previous Year
Profit for the year 169,958,114 750,083,315
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value - -
(Gains/(losses) on Revaluation
+Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 116,854,517 123,523,826
‘Income tax relating to above items (35,056,355) (37,057,148)
Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 81,798,162 86,466,678
Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
1 Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge B -
' Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation) - -
i Income tax relating to above items - -
' Reclassify to profit or loss - -
Net other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss - w
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 81,798,162 86,406,678
Total comprehensive income for the vear 251,756,276 836,549,993
Total comprehensive income for the period 251,756,276 836,549,993
As per our report of even date,
Hari Krishna Pant Santosh Kumar Bhattarai Niraj Kumar Basnet (Danil)
(Chairman) (Director) (Director)
Devendra Bahadur Raut Top Bahadur Rayamaijhi Samrita Tiwari
(Director) (Director) [Director)
Krishna Kumar Pradhan Puskar Raj Subedi
(Director) (Manager)
FCA. Anish Gyawali
Partner, G & G Associates
Chartered Accountants
Narayan Bahadur Karki Mukesh Dahal Date: 11t [an, 2024
(Asst. General Manager) (Act. Chief Executive Officer) Place: Kathmandu, Nepal.
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Change in Equity
Attributable to Equity Holders of the Institution

For the Financial Year Ended 31 Ashad 2080

Share Share
Capital ~ Premium

General
Reserve

Exchange

Equalization Reserve  Reserve | Reserve

Regulatory FairValue Revalutation  Reschedule & Restructure

Retained Other

Balunce at Shrawan 1 078
Adjustment/Restatement
Adjusted Restated balsnce at Shrawan | 278
Comprehensive income for the year
Prafit for the year
(ther comprehensive income, nef of fay
> CaineJosses) from investments in equity
instruments measured at fair value
> Ciins/{osszs) on revalhuation
> Actuarial gains/(losses| on defined benefit plans
> GainsiTosses) on cash flow hedge
> Exchange gains/(losses) (ansing from transladng
finaneal assets of fores operation)
Total comprehiensive income for the vear -

1695000000 510011 986,597,752

1695000000 510111 986597,752

09,566 370825891 2,970,038
48.689)

09,566 370825891 2921369

Transfir 1o resenve durmg the yer
Transfer from eserve durig the yer

Share isued
. —
Dividends to equity holders
> Bonis shares issued
> Cash dividend] paid
Other
Total contributions by and distributions
Balance at Asarend 209

150,600,937

118,122,302

Transactions with owners, directly recognised in equity

LISSOSON SIONIL LISTISH688

1L921,369)

300,025,000

500025000 150,600,937 1§,122302  (2921,369)

W36 489B -

R p Reserve Earnings Reserves
S8 243083929 3851807424
45 689 - -
S5LIS8807  M43,083920 3851807424
750,083,315 750,083,315
86,466,678 86,466,678
75008335 B6.466,678 136.549.993
(299,507.407) 30,784,168 -
12732487 (42.407,807) {32,59,689/
(1,821,335) {1.821.355]
(300,025,000 i -
(26,317,105) (26,317,103
- (814.938.580)  (11,623,639) (60,7353
WIIMEH MTINIE 46262068

Hari Krishna Pant
(Chairman)

Devendra Bahadur Raut
(Director)

Krishna Kumar Pradhan
(Director)

Narayan Bahadur Karki
(Asst. General Manager)

o
<)

Santosh Kumar Bhattarai

As per our report of even date,

Niraj Kumar Basnet (Danil)

(Director) (Director)
Top Bahadur Rayamajhi Samrita Tiwari
(Director) (Director)
Puskar Raj Subedi

(Manager)

Mukesh Dahal
(Act. Chief Executive Officer)

FCA. Anish Gyawali
Partner, G & G Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date: 11 Jan, 2024
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal.
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Limited
Statement of Change in Equity
Attributable to Equity Holders of the Institution
For the Financial Year Ended 31 Ashad 2080

Share Share  General Exchange Regulstory  FairValee Revahutation Reschedule & Restructure  Retained Other

Capital ~ Premium  Reserve  Equalization Reserve Reserve Reserve  Reserve Reserve Earmings Reserves
Balance at Shrawan | 2079 LI95M5000 SI0ATT  L137.198.688 9360 d8B.948,193 . . #13058 37926968 462762206
Adjustment Restatement - - . (117,019,589 . . . 204438919 . -
Restatement of Regulatory Reserve (117,019,589 04438919 (8741900
Adjusted Restated balance at Shrawan | 2079 1195025000 SI0HTT - 1,137,195,68% 9566 371928303 . . 691742461 230,507,930 4627622069
Comprehensive income for the year -

Profit for the year 169.958,1 14 169,958,114

Other comprehensive income, net of fax
> Gains{Jnsses) from Investments in equity
nsirumens meastred & fai value
> Giains {osses) on revaluation #
> Aetuarial gains| Tosses) on defined berwfit plars - 1,758,162 81,798,162
> Ciams/{losses) on cash fow bedgze -
> Exchange gair{ lossas) (arising from translating
fimanezal assets of foreign operation) -
151,756,076

Total comprehensive income for the year z z : - . - - 15175617 -
Transfes 1o reserve daring the vear (3399162) 97833848 94.436,686
Transfes from reserve during the year 13991623 JLp44302 8403345 (1947656 (36319564) (130938,350)
Transactions ith owners,direetly recognised in equity - .
Shere issed
Share based payments
Transfer to Emmplovees’ training fund -
Previous Year Adjustment of Housing Loan {129,133,856) - (129,133,856)
Divicends to equity holders .
> Bomus shares issued 417054750 (417034750 - -
> Cash dividend pid 2190230 : (21950.230)
Othier =% ; &
Total contributions by and distributions AT054730 . 13991623 . RUMETR ) - . 8403345 (I30100417) 61315984 (187,603,970)
Balance at Asarend 2080 1512079750 SIOAH LITLI0AIN 9366 674,572,806 - . 208,403,145 [35?,5:15,_;!37]' 913898 469177475

As per our report of even date.

Hari Krishna Pant Santosh Kumar Bhattarai Niraj Kumar Basnet (Danil)
(Chairman) (Director) (Director)
Devendra Bahadur Raut Top Bahadur Rayamajhi Samrita Tiwari
(Director) (Director) (Director)
Krishna Kumar Pradhan Puskar Raj Subedi
(Director) (Manager)
FCA. Anish Gyawali
Partner, G & G Associates
Chartered Accountants
Narayan Bahadur Karki Mukesh Dahal Date: 11 Jan, 2024
(Asst. General Manager) (Act. Chief Executive Officer) Place: Kathmandu, Nepal.
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
For the vear ended 31 Ashad 2080

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Interest received 3943 289, 568 3929308596
Fees and other income received 141,507,140 83711513
Divided received = -
Recerpts from other operutmg activities 2, ] -
Interest pasd (2,000,935 036) (1,827.324,305)

Commission and fees pasd (5,769,078} 11,863,754}
Cash payment to employees 79, 170) (046, 664, 204)
Other expense pasd (L005,214.105) (386.303,337)
Dperating cash Nows before changes in operating wssets and abilities 126,253,186 1,044,874,420

(IncressepTecrense in operating assels

Do fromn Mepual Rastra Rask A0 AT 04 § 140,553,119}
Placement with bank and financial mstitutions - ST0.000.000

Other trading assets A

Loan and advances to bank mnd financial mstitutions . -
Lavns and adranees o cusiomerns 2856,150,862 (3.431815,108)
Other assels (207371 830) (202,404,232}

Incrense/(Decrease) in operating labilithes

Due to bank and financial instituzions = -
Due 1o Nepal Rastra Bank = =
Depoit fiom customers 031,463,793 k
Bomowings 12,342,617, 161) 141,194.330)
Other fiahilitics (350.307,745) (17,727,514}

Net cash flaw from operating activities before tay paid 171,781,101
. (73.945216)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase ofmvestment securities - (91,130,988
Recepis from sale of investment secunties e =
Purchase of property and equipment (117 850,733} 6637947
Receipt from the sale of property and equipment - -
Purchase of inumgible assets = =]
Revept from the sale of intangible asscts = =
Purchase of mvestment properties =

Receipt from the sale of investment properties = 2
Iterest received 1 7.490,004 14285754

168, 3018 036
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debt secuntics -
Repayment of debt seourities -
Receipt from isswe of subordinated Fabilities =
Repayment of subordinated liahilities -
Receipt from issue of shares - -
Dividends paid 1103 305 BIFEY 25731329
Inerest paid = =
Other receipt/payment = =
et el Tron nanelag ity eIt
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents OB 1T0 2M,114510
Cash and cash equivalents at Shravwan | 2076 1 0130, 554 424 i ATIG 4
Effect of exchange rate Muctaations on cash and cash squivalents held =

As per our report of even date.

Hari Krishna Pant Santosh Kumar Bhattarai Niraj Kumar Basnet (Danil)
(Chairman) (Director) (Director)
Devendra Bahadur Raut Top Bahadur Rayamajhi Samrita Tiwari
(Director) (Director) (Director)
Krishna Kumar Pradhan Puskar Raj Subedi
(Director) (Manager)
FCA. Anish Gyawali
Partner, G & G Associates
Chartered Accountants
Narayan Bahadur Karki Mukesh Dahal Date: 11 Jan, 2024
(Asst. General Manager) (Act. Chief Executive Officer) Place: Kathmandu, Nepal.
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 31 Ashad 2080

1 Reporting Entity

1.1 Corporate Information

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited (NULBSL or "the Financial Institution") has been in operation since
1998. It is a public limited company, registered under The Companies Act, 1997 (now The Companies Act, 2006), carrying
micro-finance activities. The Financial Institution is licensed by the Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) in April 1999 to undertake
banking activities under the Development Bank Act, 1996, and started its formal operation in July 1999. Now, operating
under the Bank and Financial Institutions Act, 2017 (BAFIA) as a "D" Class Financial Institution.

1.2 Principal Activities of the Financial Institution

The Financial Institution provides microfinance services such as Loans, Deposits, Micro-Insurance, and Remittance
services to low-income families of Nepal. NULBSL follows group lending based on Grameen Bank, Bangladesh model
as well as group lending based on NULBSL developed Self-Reliant model through a network of 185 branch offices spread
over all 77 districts of Nepal.

The Head Office of the Financial Institution is located at Naxal-01, Kathmandu, Nepal. Its ordinary shares are listed with
Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd and its stock symbol is "NUBL",

2 Basis of Preparation

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting as prescribed by Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRSs), as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).

The preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements comply with the requirements of format issued by Nepal
Rastra Bank via Unified Directives to Microfinance FIs, 2079.

The Financial Statements comprise of:

e  Statement of Financial Position stating the financial position of the financial institution as at the end of reporting
period;

e  Statement of Profit and Loss stating the financial performance of the financial institution for the reported period
ended;

e  Statement of Comprehensive Income for the reported period ended;

e Statement of Changes in Equity stating all the changes in equity of the financial institution during the reporting
period;

e  Statement of Cash Flows stating the ability of the financial institution to generate cash and cash equivalents; and

e Notes to the Financial Statements comprising summary of principal accounting policies and explanatory notes
that are of significant importance to the stakeholders.

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Board of Directors following Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRSs) with allowed carve-outs as issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and pronounced
by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN). The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of financial statements are set out in Note - 3. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented
except for the changes in accounting policies disclosed specifically.

2.2 Reporting period and approval of financial statements
The Financial Institution follows the Nepalese Financial Year based on the Nepalese Calendar starting from the first day
of Shrawan (Mid July) of each year to the last day of Asar (Mid July) of the next year. Comparative reporting period
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figures have been restated/reclassified wherever necessary by the standards/regulations and/or for better presentation which
has been disclosed separately, wherever necessary.

The accompanied Financial Statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on its 310" meeting held on 26
Poush, 2080. The Board acknowledges the responsibility of preparation of financial statements of the Financial Institution
and has been recommended for approval by shareholders in the 25" Annual General Meeting.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

Financial Statements are denominated in Nepalese Rupees (NPR), which is the functional and presentation currency of the
Financial Institution. There was no change in the presentation and functional currency during the year under review. The
figures are rounded to nearest rupee unless otherwise indicated.

2.4 Use of Estimates, Assumptions, and Judgments

As aresult of the uncertainties inherent in business activities, many items in Financial Statements cannot be measured with
precision but can only be estimated. Estimation involves judgements based on the latest available, reliable information.
An estimate may need revision if changes occur in the circumstances on which the estimate was based or as a result of
new information or more experience. During the preparation of the financial statements, NFRS requires the management
to make critical accounting judgments, estimates, and assumptions in applying the accounting policies that have a material
impact on the financial statements.

The underlying assumption made while making accounting estimates are periodically reviewed and such revision is
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and are applied prospectively. Change in estimates is not the
correction of an error. Disclosures of the accounting estimate have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes
of accounting estimates in the relevant section of the notes wherever the estimates have been applied.

2.5 Changes in Accounting policies

Generally accepted accounting policies are followed consistently throughout the accounting period, so as to present the
general-purpose financial statements ensuring comparability both with the entity’s financial statements of previous periods
and with the financial statements of other comparable entities. However. the changes when required by NFRS or due to
the requirement that results in the financial statements providing more reliable and more relevant information about the
effects of the transactions, other events or conditions on the entity’s financial position, financial performance or cash flows
are made and the changes are applied retrospectively.

2.6 New standards in issue but not yet effective

As per the guidelines of the TCAN, When International Accounting Standard Board revises, amends or withdraws
International Accounting Standards, IFRSs, IFRIC or SIC, such revisions, amendments and withdrawals shall accordingly
be treated as effected with immediate revision, amendment and withdrawal in NFRS by ASB as well, to the extent not in
conflict with existing national laws. Few carve outs on applicable Accounting Standards as provided by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nepal have been used by the financial institution. Further, a number of new standards and
amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued by International Accounting Standard Board
after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become applicable when Accounting Standard
Board Nepal incorporates them within NFRS.

2.7 New Standards and interpretation not adopted

In preparing financial statements, Standards and pronouncements issued by Accounting Standard Board Nepal has been
adopted. Management has used its assumptions and understandings for the preparation of financial statements under
compliance with NFRS, however certain interpretations might vary regarding the recognition, measurement, and other
related provisions where the standards are not specific and not clear.

2.8 Discounting

When the realization of assets and settlement of obligation is for more than one year, the Financial Institution considers
the discounting of such assets and liabilities where the impact is material. Various internal and external factors have been
considered for determining the discount rate to be applied to the Cash Flows of the Financial Institution. Market Interest

- | of=El et afaaest 206R/T0 l -

rit
Fall



Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Rate on Staff loans except housing loan has been precluded from discounting as management considers the current interest
rate as market rate under the same class of loans. Housing loan has been considered under EIR method. Management
considers Lease payments under an operating lease to be recognised as an expense when accrued as the payments to the
lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary
cost increases.

3 Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies applied by the Financial Institution in the preparation of these financial statements are
presented below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless stated otherwise.

3.1 Basis of Measurement
The financial statements are prepared on the historical-cost basis except for the following material items in the statement
of financial position:

Defined benefit schemes, surpluses and deficits are measured at fair value.
Liabilities for defined benefit obligations are recognized at the present value ofthe defined benefit obligation less
the fair value of the plan assets.

e Investment securities has been measured at fair value under NFRS 9 "Financial Instruments", wherever
applicable.

e Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other comprehensive income are measured at
fair value.

e Financial assets and financial liabilities held at amortized cost at measured using a rate that is a close
approximation of effective interest rate.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the period in
which the estimates are revised and in the future periods. The arcas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in notes.

Offsetting

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are netted off only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Materiality and Aggregation

In compliance with NFRS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements, each material class of similar items is presented
separately in the financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or functions are presented separately unless they are
material. Such presentation of line items is consistent with the format issued by NRB.

3.2 Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent comprise of the total amount of cash-in-hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions,
money at call, short notice and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the
acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used by the management of
its short-term commitments.

3.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets refer to assets that arise from contractual agreements that result in future cash inflows or from owning
equity instruments of another entity. Since financial assets derive their value from a contractual claim. These are non-
physical in form and are usually regarded as more liquid than other tangible assets. Common examples of financial assets
are cash, cash equivalents, bank balances, placements, investments in debt and equity instruments, derivative assets and
loans and advances.
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Financial liabilities are obligations that arise from contractual agreements and that require settlement by way of delivering
cash or another financial asset. Settlement could also require exchanging other financial assets or financial liabilities under
potentially unfavourable conditions. Settlement may also be made by issuing own equity instruments. Common examples
of financial liabilities are due to banks, derivative liabilities, deposit accounts, money market borrowings and debt capital
instruments.

Recognition

The Financial Institution initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position
when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Financial Institution initially
recognize loans and advances, deposits, and debt securities/ subordinated liabilities issued on the date that they are
originated which 1s the date that the Financial Institution becomes party to the contractual provisions of the mstruments.
Investments in equity instruments, bonds, debentures, Government securities, NRB bond or deposit auction, reverse repos,
outright purchase are recognized on trade date at which the Financial Institution commits to purchase/acquire the financial
assets. Regular purchase and sale of financial assets are recognized on trade date. All financial assets and liabilities are
initially recognized at their cost value and are subsequently presented as per NFRS based on the respective classification.

Classification

i. Financial Assets

The Financial Institution classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the
basis of the Financial Institution’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. The two classes of financial assets are as follows:

1. Financial assets measured at amortized cost
The Financial Institution classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both ofthe following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows, and
b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of
Principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding.

2. Financial asset measured at fair value

Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value. Financial assets measured at fair

value are further classified into two categories as below:

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or are
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are directly attributable
to the acquisition are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value
and changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial recognition, the Financial
Institution makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent changes in fair value of the instrument is to be
recognized in other comprehensive income are classified as financial assets at fair value though other
comprehensive income. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

ii. Financial Liabilities
The Financial Institution classifies the financial liabilities as follows:
a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or are
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction cost is directly attributable to
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the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value are
recognized at profit or loss.

b) Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as subsequently
measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.

Measurement

i. Financial assets at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Financial Institution can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by instrument basis) to
present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity
instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are
initially measured at fair value. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Fair Value Reserve’. The cumulative gain
or loss is not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the Financial
Institution’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment and the
amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

ii. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL unless the Financial Institution irrevocably elects on initial
recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity
instruments which are not held for trading. Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria
are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortized cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are
designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortized cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCT criteria may be designated
as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different
bases.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising
on re-measurement recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognized
when the Institution’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of the cost ofthe investment and the
amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

ifi. Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or is designated as at FVTPL.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid
on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other Income” line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair
value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit
risk are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is always
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are
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recognized in other comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently
reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv. Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities that are non-held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortized cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amount of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at
amortized cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalized as part of
costs of an asset 1s incorporated in the ‘Finance Expenses’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

De-recognition
De-recognition of financial assets

The Financial Institution derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Institution neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for de-recognition that is created or retained by the Financial

Institution is recognized as a separate asset or liability. On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the

carrying amount of the asset, and the sum of;

(1) The consideration received, and

(1) Any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in retained
earnings.

The Financial Institution enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its Statement of Financial
Position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. I
all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognized. Transfers of assets
with retention of all or substantially all risks and rewards include, for example repurchase transactions.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the lLiability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the
original liability and the recognition of'a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial
liability and the consideration paid is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Determination of fair value

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous
market to which the Financial Institution has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance
risk.

When available, the Financial Institution measures the fair value ofan instrument using the quoted price in an active market
for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. [fthere is no quoted price in an active market,
then the Financial Institution uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize

of=El et afaaest 206R/T0 l -



: éﬁﬁwﬁ Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants
would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:
Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or
similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are
observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where there are unobservable inputs of the instruments. The inputs are not based on observable
market data.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price i.e. the
fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Financial Institution determines that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market
for an identical asset or liability (Level-1 valuation) nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable
markets (Level-2 valuation), then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference
between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized in profit
or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but not later than when the valuation is wholly supported by
observable market data or the transaction is closed out. In case the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability (Level-1 valuation), the difference between the transaction price and fair value is
recognized in profit or loss immediately.

Impairment

At each reporting date, the Financial Institution assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or the
group of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A financial asset or the group of
financial assets is impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset(s). and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer,
default or delinquency by a borrower, project of the borrower having negative cash flows or negative net worth,
restructuring of a loan or advance by the Financial Institution on terms that the Financial Institution would not otherwise
consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security,
or other observable data relating to the group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or
issuers in the group. or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the Financial Institution. In addition, for an
investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of
impairment.

In case of financial difficulty of the borrower, the Financial Institution considers to restructure loans rather than take
possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and agreement of new loan conditions.
Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the EIR method and the loan is no longer
considered past due. Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future
payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual or collective impairment assessment,
calculated using the loan’s original EIR.

Impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cost. The Financial Institution considers evidence of impairment for
loans and advances measured at amortized cost at both specific asset and collective level. The Financial Institution first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually significant
and that are not individually significant are assessed on collectively.
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[fthere is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Impairment of loans and advances portfolios are based on the judgments in past experience of portfolio behaviour. In
assessing collective impairment, the Financial Institution uses historical trends of the probability of default, the timing of
recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as to whether current economic
adjustment are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends. Probability of
default pattern and loss given default pattern are regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain
appropriate. Impairment has been considered as per carve-out issued by ICAN where impairment as per NFRS or as per
NRB Directive whichever is higher.

Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Financial Institution. If in a subsequent vear, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of'an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write off is later
recovered, the recovery is recognized in the ‘non-operating income’.

3.4 Trading assets
There were no trading assets held by the Financial Institution during the year.

3.5 Property and Equipment

a) Recognition and Measurement

Property and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the assets will flow
to the Financial Institution and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured. The cost includes expenditures that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Cost of self-constructed assets includes followings:

e Cost of materials and direct labour;

* Any other cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to the working condition for their intended use; and

* Capitalized borrowing cost.

Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss if any.
Neither class of the property and equipment are measured at revaluation model nor is their fair value measured at the
reporting date. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from the expenditure
will flow to the entity. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in working condition are expensed as incurred.
Any gain or losses on de-recognition of an item of property and equipment is recognized in profit or loss.

b) Grant Assets

The assets received under grant has been booked under Property and Equipment by creating a capital reserve of equal
amount. The annual depreciation is deducted every year from this reserve till the useful life of'assets. The balance of capital
reserve depicts at the same proportion of the depreciation.

¢) Depreciation

Property and Equipment's are depreciated from the date they are available for use on Straight Line method over the
estimated uscful life as determined by the Management. Depreciation is charged to profit or loss. Land is not depreciated.
Charging of depreciation is ceased from earlier of: the date from which the asset is classified as held for sale or from the
date of derecognition. The estimated useful life of significant items of property and equipment for current year and
comparative period are as follows:

Class of Assets Useful Life
_Building 30 Years
Computer and Accessories 5 Years
Vehicles 5 years
Furniture, Fixture and Equipment's 10 Years

Assets costing less than NPR 3,000 are fully expensed in the year of purchase.
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The additional information on gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation (aggregated with accumulated
impairment loss, if'any) is presented in the Note-4 separately,

3.6 Goodwill and Intangible assets
There is no Goodwill and Intangible Assets held by the Financial Institution during the year.

3.7 Investment Property
There is no Investment Property held by the Financial Institution during the year.

3.8 Income tax

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current and
deferred taxes. The Financial Institution applies NAS 12 — “Income Taxes” for the accounting of Income Tax. Income tax
expense is recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity or directly in
other comprehensive income. Tax expense relating to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income is
recognized in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income.

Current Tax

Current tax comprises the amount of income taxes payable (or recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (or tax loss) for
the reporting period, and any amount adjusted to the tax payable (or receivable) in respect of previous years. It is measured
using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

The Financial Institution has determined tax provision for the reported period based on its accounting profit for that period,
and incorporating the effects of adjustments for taxation purpose as required under the Income Tax Act, 2058 and
amendments thereto, using a corporate tax rate of 30%.

Current tax for current and prior periods shall, to the extent unpaid, be recognized as liability. If the amount already paid
in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess shall be recognized as an asset.
Moreover, the benefit relating to a tax loss can be carried back to recover current tax of a previous period shall be
recognized as an asset. Explanatory information on current tax calculation is stated in Note-4.9,

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax liabilities are the amounts of income taxes payable in future periods in respect of taxable temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets are the amounts of income taxes recoverable in future periods in respect of:

(a) deductible temporary differences;

(b) the carry forward of unused tax losses; and

(c) the carry forward of unused tax credits.

Deferred tax is recognized at the reporting date in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
or liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary difterences, carried forward unused tax credits and carried
forward unused tax losses (if any), to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be claimed. Deferred tax liabilities are the amounts of income taxes payable in future periods in respect of taxable
temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to be applied to temporary differences when they will be reversed, using tax rates enacted, or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date. Deferred tax income or expense relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in
Other Comprehensive Income.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets shall reflect the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the entity expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

The income taxes levied to the Financial Institution relates to the same taxation authority and the taxation laws permit the
entity to make or receive a single net payment. Therefore, the Financial Institution has legally enforceable right to set off
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a current tax asset against a current tax liability. Explanatory information on deferred tax calculation is stated in Note -
4.13.

3.9 Deposits, debt securities issued, and subordinated liabilities
The Financial Institution's deposits consist of money placed into the Financial Institution by its customers and members.
These deposits are made to deposit accounts such as term deposit accounts, savings deposit accounts.

3.10 Provisions
The Financial Institution applies NAS 37 — “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets” in the accounting of
provisions.

A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. A provision shall be recognized when:

(a) an entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result ofa past event;

(b) it is probable that an outflow ofresources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and

(¢) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If these conditions are not met, no provision shall be
recognized.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end ofthe reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value ofthose
cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is:
® a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or
e present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:
o It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; or
o The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent assct is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

3.11 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Financial Institution and can
be measured reliably. The Financial [nstitution applies NAS 18 — “Revenue” in the accounting of revenue unless otherwise
stated.
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The basis of income recognition is mentioned below:

i.  Interest income

Interest income is recognized under an accrual basis (using the effective interest rate method) in the profit or loss for all
interest-bearing financial assets except loans categorized as bad loans measured at amortized cost. Effective Interest Rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or cash payments through the expected life of a financial
asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. Effective Interest Rate method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest income and service income over the relevant period.

NFRS Requirement

NFRS requires interest income to be recognized using the effective interest method, except for those classified at fair value
through profit or loss. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset and
ofallocating the interest income and service income over the expected life of the financial instrument. The effective interest
rate is the ratc that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or reccipts over the expected life of the financial
mstrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.
The effective interest rate is calculated on initial recognition of the financial asset or liability by estimating the future cash
flows after considering all the contractual terms of the instrument but not future credit losses. The calculation includes all
amounts expected to be paid or received by the Financial Institution including expected penalties that are an integral part
of the overall return. Direct incremental transaction costs related to the acquisition, issue, or disposal of financial
mstruments are also taken into account in the calculation. Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has
been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognized using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows to measure the impairment loss.

Carve-out for Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Financial Institution has availed the carve-out for interest income recognition by applying the rate implicit on
individual loan products. Considering the amount of renewal and mnitial service fees that the Financial Institution charges
on the loans and applying the EIR method would not be practical. Hence, initial service fees have been recognized during
the period when such income accrues rather than being included within the component of interest income under the EIR
method.

Accrued Interest has been accounted as per "Guideline on Recognition of Interest Income, 2019" issued by Nepal Rastra
Bank, in July 2019. Interest from Loans where contractual payments of principal and /or interest are not more than 3
months in arrcars are considered as Performing loans and Interest Income has been booked accordingly. Remaining Interest
Income, in relation to Non-Performing Loans, has been treated as Interest Suspense and accounted accordingly.

Out of Total Interest Accrued of Rs. 747,216,507 during the financial year, Interest Accrued from Performing Loan is Rs.
330,975,655 and from Non-Performing Loan is Rs. 416,240,852 .

ii. Fee and commission income

Fees and commission income that is integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset is included in the measurement
of effective interest rate. Other fees and commission income including management fees, service charges are recognized
as and when the related services are performed

iii. Dividend income

A dividend on investment in a resident company is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. Dividend
income is presented in other operating income, net income from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss, or other revenue based on the underlying classification of the equity instruments.

iv. Net Trading Income
The Financial Institution does not have Net Trading Income.

v. Net income from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
The Financial Institution presents income other than those presented under interest income, fees and commission income
under this heading. Income recognized here includes items such as foreign exchange revaluation gain or loss; dividend on
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equity investments that are measured at FVTOCI; gain or loss on disposal of property and equipment; gain and loss on

disposal of investment property; and gain or loss on disposal of investment securities except for equity investments
measured at FVTOCI.

3.12 Interest expense

Interest expenses on all financial liabilities including deposits are recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest
rate method. Interest expenses on all trading liabilities are considered to be incidental to the Financial Institution’s trading
operations and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading
income.

3.13 Employees Benefits
Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees. The
Financial Institution’s remuneration package includes both short term and long-term benefits and comprises of: salary,
allowances, paid leave, accumulated leave, gratuity, provident fund and annual statutory bonus. The Financial Institution
applies NAS 19 — “Employee Benefits” in accounting of all employee benefits and recognizes the followings in its financial
statements:
e aliability when an employee has provided service in exchange for employee benefits to be paid in the future; and
e an expense when the Financial Institution consumes the economic benefit arising from service provided by an
employee in exchange for employee benefits.

Explanatory information on personnel expense is stated in Note-4.34.

a) Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the end of annual reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. This includes all the following items (if payable within 12 months after the end of the reporting
period):

e wages, salaries and social security contributions;

e paid annual leave and paid sick leave;

* non-monetary benefits
The Financial Institution shall recognize the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for that service.

A liability is also recognized for the amount expected to be paid under bonus required by the prevailing Bonus
Act, pay the amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated
reliably under short term employee benefits.

b) Post-Employment Benefit Plan
Post-employment benefit plan includes followings:

i. Defined Contribution Plan

Under defined contribution plans the Financial Institution’s legal or constructive obligation is limited to the
amount that it agrees to contribute to the fund. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are
recognized as personnel expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related service are rendered by
employees. Pre-paid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that cash refund or reduction in future
payments is available. Contributions to a defined contribution plan being due for more than 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employee render the service are discounted at their present value.

Financial Institution provides “Employees Provident Fund” to the employees entitled to receive benefits under
the provident fund act, a defined contribution plan in which both the employee and the Financial Institution

- | of=El et afaaest 206R/T0 l -



Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

contribute monthly at a pre-determined rate (currently, 10% of the basic salary plus grade). Financial Institution
does not assume any future liability for provident fund benefits other than its annual contribution.

ii. Defined Benefit Plan

The Financial Institution provides Gratuity Plan as defined benefits to its employees. These benefits are post-
employment benefit plans and are paid based on length of service. These benefit plans are funded whereas the
Financial Institution makes earmark investment of these funds. The gratuity plan provides for lump sum payments
to vested employees at retirement or upon death while in employment or on termination of employment for an
amount equivalent defined days’ eligible salary payable for each completed year of service.

Gratuity

The Financial Institution provides for gratuity on accrual basis covering eligible employees in terms of Employee
Service Byelaws of the Financial Institution. The plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees at
retirement or upon death while in employment or on termination of employment for an amount equivalent defined
days’ e¢ligible salary payable for each completed years of service. The Financial Institution accounts for the
liability for gratuity as per the actuarial valuation.

¢)  Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are recognized as expense when the Financial Institution is demonstrably committed,
without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal plan to provide termination benefits to employees as a
result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits are recognized it the Financial
Institutions made an offer for voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted and the number
of acceptances can be measured reliably. If the benefits are payable in more than 12 months after the reporting
date, they are discounted to their present value.

d) Other Long-Term Benefits

The Financial Institution’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits, other than gratuity, is the
amount of future benefits that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods.
That benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The
Financial Institution has recognized accumulated leave liability as other long term employee benefits. The
discount rate is the average yield at the reporting date on current government bonds.

3.14 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement

at the inception date and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use ofa

specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in

an arrangement.

Right-of-use asset and resulting lease liability has been created as per NFRS 16.

Consequently, depreciation on right-of-use asset and finance cost on lease liability is charged to statement of profit and

loss.

The financial Institution has adopted the lease treatment as per NFRS 16-Leases.

3.15 Share capital and reserves

The Financial Institution applied NAS 32, “Financial Instruments: Presentation™ to determine whether the financial
instrument is either a financial liability or equity. A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another
financial asset, or the variable number of its own equity shares to the holder of the instruments or to exchange financial
assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.

Dividends and other returns to equity holders are recognized when the owner's right to receive payment is established.
3.16 Earnings per share including diluted

Basic carnings per equity share are computed as per NAS 33 “Earnings per Share”. Basic earnings per equity share are
computed by dividing net profit afier tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
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Bonus shares involve the issue of shares without any consideration and hence do not change the resources available to the
entity. Accordingly, adjustments of bonus shares issued have been done.

The entity does not hold any dilutive potential ordinary shares, and hence the Basic EPS itself is the Diluted EPS.

The entity has no discontinued operation and so the amounts per share for the continued and discontinued operation have
not been reported.

3.17 Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the entity that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and
incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the same entity), whose
operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's Chief Operating Decision Maker to make decisions about resource
allocation to each segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is available.

The Financial Institution has identified segments based on the geographic locations of'its offices in the seven provinces of

the country. Interest earnings generated while conducting businesses under different segments are reported under the
respective segment. All business transactions of business units located in a particular province are grouped together.

4 Explanatory Notes
The explanatory notes and significant disclosure relating to the financial statements are as follows:

4.1 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent includes the total amount of cash at vault, balances with other bank & financial institutions,
money at call and short notice and highly liquid financial assets 1.¢., Treasury Bills, with original maturities of three months
or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and used in the
management of short-term commitments and Cash in Transit is presented as follows:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Cash in hand 38,068,253 33,252,131
Balances with B/FIs 96,450,128 90,526,600
Money at call and short notice 1,187.914,213 756,815,692
Other 500,000,000 150,000,000
Total 1,822,432,593 1,030,594.424

4.2 Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Statutory Balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank including balance for compulsory cash reserve, securities purchased from
Nepal Rastra Bank under resale agreement, other deposits with and receivables from Nepal Rastra Bank is presented as
follows:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Statutory balances with NRB 433,404,153 392,914,153
Statutory balances with BFIs - -
Securities purchased under resale agreement - -
Other deposit and receivable from NRB 3,488,306 3,488,302

Total 436,892,459 396,402,455

4.3 Placements with Financial Institutions
Placements with domestic banks and financial institutions with original maturities of more than three months from the
acquisition date are presented as follows:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Placement with domestic Fls A R
Less: Allowances for impairment . .
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4.4 Derivative Financial Instruments

The Financial Institution does not have any Derivative Financial Instruments.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Held for trading
Interest rate swap - -
Currency swap B -
Forward exchange contract - -
Others - -
Held for risk management
Interest rate swap B -
Currency swap - -
Forward exchange contract - -
Others - -
Total - -

4.5 Other Trading Assets
The Financial Institution does not have any Trading Assets.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Treasury bills B -
Government bonds - -
NRB Bonds B -
Domestic Corporate bonds - -
Equities - -
Other “ -

Total - -
Pledged & x
Non-Pledged - -

4.6 Loans and advances to MFIs & Cooperatives
The Financial Institution does not have any Loan and advances to MFIs and Cooperatives.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Loans to microfinance institutions - -
Loans to Fls - -
Loans to cooperative - -
Less: allowance for impairment other - -
Less: allowance for impairment - -

Total - -

4.6.1 Allowances for Impairment

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Balance at Shrawan 1 - -
Impairment loss for the year: - -
Charge for the year - -
Recoveries/reversal - -
Amount written off - -

Balance as Asar end - -

4.7 Loans and advances to Customers

Total Loans and advances extended to the customers and amortized cost of staff loans; less the amount of impairment
loss is presented under this head. Accrued Interest Receivable on performing loans have been considered under loans
and advances measured at amortized cost. Impairment on loans and advances to customers are assessed individually and

- gttt At gfadest 2068/T0 | - o



Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited.

-

collectively as per incurred loss model which is compared with the loan loss provision prescribed by NRB Directives.

Higher of the loss as per incurred loss model and NRB directive is considered for impairment.

Current Year

Particulars

Previous Year

Loan and advances measured at amortized cost 26,501,974,240 28.482.344 575
Less: Impairment allowances 2,189.330,910 1,313,350,383
Collective impairment 1.805.583,297 897.274.612
Individual impairment 383,747,613 416,075,770
Net Amount 24,312,643,330 27,168,994,192
Loans and advances measured at FVTPL - -

Total 24,312,643,330 27,168,994,192

4.7.1 Analysis of loan and advances - By Product
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Product

Term loans .
Short term, term loan -
Long term, term loan .
Hire purchase loans -
Personal Residential Loans -
421,853,645

538,801,106

Staff loans

Other 25,749,144.940 27.691.127.,000
Sub-Total 26,170,998,585 28.229.928.107
Interest receivable 330,975,655 252,416,468
Grand Total 26.501,974,240 28.482,344,575

4.7.2 Analysis of loan and advances - By Collateral
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Secured

Immovable assets 320,609,650 318,116,254
Government guarantee - -
Collateral of Government securities - -
Collateral of Fixed Deposit Receipt - -
Group guarantee 21,610,231,671 24,133,593.016
Personal guarantee - -
Other collateral 4,571,132,919 4,030,635,305
Sub-Total 26,501,974,240 28.482.,344,575
Unsecured - -
_Grand Total 26501974240 28482344575

4.7.3 Allowances for Impairment
Particulars
Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year (32,328,157)
Recoveries/reversal during the year -
Write-offs -
Other movement

Current Year

416,075,770

Previous Year
387,469,420

28,606,351

Balance at Asar end 383,747,613

416,075,770

e L
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Collective allowances for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1 897,274,612 679,583,603
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge/(reversal) for the year 908,308,684 217,691,010
Other movement - -
Balance at Asar end 1,805,583,297 897,274,612
Total allowances for impairment 2,189.330,910 1,313,350,383

4.8 Investment Securities
Investment in financial instruments has been presented under this account head in two categories i.¢., investment securities
measured at amortized cost and mvestment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Investment securities measured at amortized cost 290,000,000 290,000,000
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI 3,510,000 3,510,000
Total 293,510,000 293,510,000

4.8.1 Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost
Disclosures in respect of investment in government bond which are measured at amortized cost are as follows:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Debt securities - -
Government bonds 290,000,000 290,000,000

Government treasury bills - -
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds - -
Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments - -
Other - -
Less: specific allowances for impairment - -
Total 290,000,000.00 290,000,000.00

4.8.2 Investment in equity measured at fair value through OCI
Disclosures in respect of investment in shares and debentures/bonds of other companies/institutions are as follows:
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Equity instruments
Quoted equity securities

Unquoted equity securities 3.510,000.00 3,510,000.00

Total 3,510,000.00 3,510,000.00

ment relating to investment in equities

AT Previous Year

Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Investment in quoted equity
NIBL Samriddhi Fund-1 - - - -
Investment in unquoted equity

Prabhu Capital Ltd. 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
Center for Micro-Finance Nepal 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000

Nepal Finsoft Company Ltd 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
Total 3,510,000 3,510,000 3,510,000 3,510,000

4.9 Current Tax Assets
Advance tax deposited by the financial institution less tax liabilities as well as income tax liabilities for the purpose of
current tax, prior period tax including fees are presented under this head.
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Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Current tax assets 387.475,530 481,447,942
Current year income tax assets 387.475,530 481,447,942
Tax assets of prior periods - -
Current tax liabilities 312,350,347 329,787,437
Current year income tax labilities 312,350,347 329,787,437
Tax liabilities of prior periods - -

Total 75,125,183 151,660,505

4.10 Investment properties
The Financial Institution does not have any investment properties.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Investment properties measured at fair value

Balance as on Shrawan 1, 2079 - -
Addition/disposal during the year - -
Net changes in fair value during the year - -
Adjustment/transfer - -

Net Amount - -

Investment properties measured at cost

Balance as on Shrawan 1, 2079 - -
Addition/disposal during the year - B,
Adjustment/transfer - -
Accumulated depreciation - -
Accumulated impairment loss - -
Net Amount - -
Total - -

ofearelt A SRS 2063/T0 -
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4.12 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Financial Institution does not have any goodwill and intangible assets.

4.12 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Particulars

Goodwill

Software

Total Asar end Total as on

Cost

Ason Shrawan 1 2078
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization

Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Asar End 2079
Addition during the Year
Acquisition

Capitalization

Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation

Purchased

Developed

2080 Asar end 2079

Balance as on Asar end 2080

Depreciation and Impairment
As on Shrawan 1 2078
Depreciation charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals

Adjustment

As on Asar 2079

Impairment for the year
Depreciation charge for the Year
Disposals

Adjustment

As on Asar end 2080

Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value

As on Asar End 2078

As on Asar End 2079

As on Asar End 2080
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Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences between the book values of financial assets/liabilities and tax base of
assets/liabilities using the tax rate of 30%.

4.13 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loan and Advance to B/Fls

Loans and advances to customers

Investment properties

Investment securities

Deferred Tax Assets

Current Year
Deferved Tax Liabilitics

Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities)

Property & equipment 3,524,113 (3,524,113)
ROU Assets & Liabilities (1,354,965) 1,354,965
Loan Loss Provision 262,794,158 262,794,158
Employees’ defined benefit plan & Leave Provision 155,746,738 - 155,746,738
Actuary Gain - -
Other temporary differences -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 418,540,896 2,169,149 416,371,747
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate -
Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on Asar end 2080 418,540,896 2,169,149 416,371,747
Deferred tax (asset)/labilites as on Shrawan 1 2079 163,219,532
Ovigination/(Reversal) during the year 253,152,215
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or loss (288,208,570)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other comprehensive income 35,056,355

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in directly in equity

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loan and Advance 10 B'Fls

Loans and advanees to customers

Investment properties

Investment securities

Deferred Tax

ious Year

ax Liabilities

Property & equipment 4,487,454 (4,487.454)
Employees' defined benefit plan 175,871,951 - 175,871,951
Actuary Gain 37,057,148 (37.057,148)
Leave Provisions 28,892,183 2R.892,183
Provisions -
Other temporary differences -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 204,764,134 41,544,602 163,219,532
Deferred tax on carry forward of inused tax losses -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate -
Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on Asarend 2079 204,764,134 41,544,602 163,219,532
Deferred tax (asset)liabilities as on Shrawn 1, 2078 177,369,546
Origination/(Reversal) during the vear (14,150,014)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or loss (22,907,134)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other comprehensive income 37,057,148

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in directly in equity

4.14 Other Assets

Other assets include accounts receivable, prepayment and deposit, stationary stock, staff advance, client protection fund,
remit in transit and inter-branch balances which are presented as follows:
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Particulars Current Year _ Previous Year

Assets held for sale =
Other non-banking assets - m

Bills receivable

Accounts receivable 17,565,208 20,341,255
Accrued income - -
Prepayments and deposit 25,772,889 25,485,694
Income tax deposit = =
Deferred employee expenditure 155,253,859 =
Other

Stationary Stock 3,487,987 3,462,619

Staft Advance 2,604,955 174,640,393

Other 100,000,000 50,000,000
Total 304,684,898 273,929,961

4.15 Due to Bank and Financial Institutions
The Financial Institution does not have any dues to bank and financial institutions.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Borrowing from BFIs - -
Settlement and clearing accounts - -
Other - -

Total B -

4.16 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
The Financial Institution does not have any dues to Nepal Rastra Bank.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Refinance from NRB B -
Standing Liquidity Facility s 2
Lender of last report facility from NRB 5 =
Securities sold under repurchase agreements - -
Other payable to NRB - -
Total - -

4.17 Derivative financial instruments

The Financial Institution does not have any derivative financial instruments.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Held for trading
Interest rate swap - -
Currency swap - -
Forward exchange contract = .
Others - -
Held for risk management
Interest rate swap - -
Currency swap - -
Forward exchange contract - -
Other - -
Total - -
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4.18 Deposits from customers
The Financial Institution does not have any institutional deposit customers. Individual customers include saving deposits
and term deposits which are presented as follows:
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Institutional customers:
Term deposits - -
Call deposits - -
Other - -
Individual customers:
Term deposits 573,033,933 338,551,007
Saving deposits 18,541,259,382 7,844,278.515
Savings from Members -
Other - -
Total 19,114,293,315 18,182,829,522

4.19 Borrowing

Borrowings from domestic banks and financial institutions as well as foreign borrowings are presented as follows:
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Domestic Borrowing
Nepal Government - -
Other licensed Institutions 3,885,503,863 6,221,145,024

Other < B
Sub total 3,885,503,863 6,221,145,024

Foreign Borrowing

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions - -
Multilateral Development Banks - -
Other Institutions 61,217,976 68,193,976

Sub total 61,217,976 68,193,976
Total 3,946,721,839 6,289,339,000

4.20 Provisions
Provisions for expenses made by the Financial Institution are presented as follows:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Provisions for redundancy - -
Provision for restructuring - -
Pending legal issues and tax litigation - -
Onerous contracts - -

Other 14,590,102 14,648,322
Total 14,590,102 14,648,322

4.20.1 Movement in Provisions

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Balance at Shrawan 1, 2079 14,648,322 76,511
Provisions made during the year - -
Provisions used during the year 58,220 (14,571,811)

Provisions reversed during the year
Unwind of discount - -
Balance at Asar end 2080 14,590,102 14,648,322
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4.21 Other liabilities
The details of other liabilities are presented as follows:
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Liability for employees defined benefit obligations (198,902,497) (93,938,249)
Liability for long-service leave 81,244 543 96,307,276
Short-term employee benefits 15,575,442 20,691,989
Bills payable - -
Creditors and accruals 43,461,004 50,016,124
[nterest payable on deposit 10,386,874 6,933,338
Interest payable on borrowing 11,337,000 15,089,369
Liabilities on deferred grant income - -
Unpaid Dividend 49,529,519 48,802,068
Liabilities under Finance Lease 129,464,994 -
Employee bonus payable - 118,257,051
Other 12,759,013 244,446,450
Total 154,855,891 506,605,415

4.21.1 Defined benefit obligations
/Particulars
The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are as follows:
Present value of funded obligations
Total present value of obligations
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of net obligations
Recognized liability for defined benefit obligations

Current Year

437,911,249
437,911,249
636,813,747
198,902,498
198,902,498

Previous Year

586,239,838
586,239,838
680,178,087
93,938,249
93,938,249

4.21.2 Plan Assets
Plan assets comprise of the following:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Plan assets comprisc
Equity securities
Government bonds

634,165,983

677,786,463

Bank deposit
Other (CIT Deposit) 2,647,763 2,391,624
Total 636,813,747 680,178,087

Actual return on plan assets

4.21.3 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1, 2079 586,239,838 616,851,113
Actuarial losses (108,645,948) (102,562,601)
Benefits paid by the plan (128,600,812) (6,802,951)
Current service costs and interest 88,918,171 78,754,277
Defined benefit obligations at Asar end 2080 437,911,249 586,239,838

4.21.4 Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1, 2079 680,178,087 575,975,004
Contributions paid into the plan 22,163,209 60,520,330
Benefits paid during the year (128,600,812) (6,802,951)
Actuarial (losses)/gains - 20,961,225
Expected return on plan assets 63,073,263 29,524,479
Fair value of plan assets at Asar end 2080 636,813,747 680,178,087
uc - ofearelt Attt ST 2063/T0
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4.21.5 Amount recognized in profit or loss

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Current service costs 55,297,317 46,414,079
Interest on obligation 57.199.,618 32,340,198
Acturial(gain)/Loss (1,770,666)

Expected return on plan assets 54,864,694 29,524 479
Total 55,861,575 49,229,798

4.21.6 Amount recognized in other comprehensive income

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Actuarial (gain)/loss (116,854,517) (123,523,826)
Total (116,854,517) (123,523,826)

4.21.7 Actuarial assumptions

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Discount rate 8.50% 8.50%
Expected return on plan asset 8.50% 8.50%
Future salary increases 4.00% 4.00%
Withdrawal rate 1.50% 1.50%

4.22 Debt securities issued
The Financial Institution has not issued any debt securities.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Debt securities issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss - -
Debt securities issued at amortized cost - -

Total

4.23 Subordinated Liabilities
The Financial Institution does not have any subordinated liabilities.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Redeemable preference shares = =
Irredeemable cumulative preference shares (liability component) - -
Other = =
Total - -

4.24 Share capital
Details of equity shares is presented as follows:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Ordinary shares 2,612,079,750 2,195,025,000
Convertible preference shares (equity component only) - -
Irredeemable preference shares (equity component only) - -
Perpetual debt (equity component only)

Total 2,612,079,750 2,195,025,000
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4.24.1 Ordinary Shares

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Authorized Capital 3,500,000,000 3,000,000,000

35000000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each

Issued capital 2,612,079,750 2,195,025,000

26120797.5 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 cach

Subscribed and paid-up capital 2,612,079,750 2,195,025,000

26120797.5 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each

Total 2,612,079,750 2,195,025,000

4.24.2 Ordinary Share Ownership

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Percent Amount Percent Amount
Domestic ownership (Promoter) 41.90% 1,094 489,259 41.90% 919,738,874
Nepal Government . - - -
A class licensed institutions 24.62% 643,153,045 24.62% 540,464,744
Other licensed institutions 0.02% 454,610 0.02% 382.025
Other Institutions 10.00% 261,087,880 10.00% 219,401,580
Other T1.27% 189,793,725 1.27% 159,490,525
Domestic ownership (Public) 49.00% 1,279.919,078 49.00% 1,075,562.251
Nepal Government 0.00% - 0.00% -
A class Licensed Institutions 0.01% 171,502 0.14% 2,991,084
Other licensed Institutions 0.07% 1,980,762 0.07% 1,566,102
Other Institutions 3.46% 90,470,464 14.70% 322,588,099
Other 45.46% 1,187,296,351 34.10% 748,416,966
Foreign ownership (Promoter) 9.10% 237,671,412 9.10% 199,723,875
Foreign ownership (Public) - - - -
Total 100% 2,612,079,750 100% 2,195,025,000

Details of Shareholding holding more than 0.5%
Particulars :

%% of n % of

Amount Amount

Holding : Holding

Domestic ownership (Promoter)
A class licensed institution

Nabil Bank Limited 9.39% 2.453,594.20 245359420 9.39% 2.061.843.86 206,184,386.24
Everest Bank Limited 7.61% 1.988.,966.39 198,896,639 7.61% 1,671.400.33 167,140,032.75
Himalayan Bank Limited 7.61% 1.988.965.86 198,896,586 7.61% 1.671,399.89 167,139,988.57
Other Institutions

Nirdhan Sanstha 7.44% 1.942,397.51 194,239,751 7.44% 1,632,266.81 163,226,681,17
National Life Insurance Company Ltd, 2.00% 52241595 52,241,595 2.00% 439,005.00 43.,900,500.00
Other

Meena Pant 536% 1,399.673.64 139,976,364 5.36% 1,175,752.34 117,575,233.69
Janardan Dev Pant 0.64% 166,093 99 16,609,399 0.64% 139,574.78 13,957,478.38

Domestic ownership (Public)
A class Licensed Institutions

Other Institutions

Nepal Life Insurance 0.68% 178.258.61 17,825.861

Nirdhan Sanstha 12.97% 3,386,831.12 338,683,112 12.97% 2,846.076.57 284 607,656.75
Other

Indira K¢ 0.63% 165,333.33 16,533,333 0.63% 138,935.57 13,893,557.11
Top Bahadur Rayamajhi 0.73% 189,828.67 18,982,867 0.73% 159.519.05 15,951,905,18
Meena Pant 2.52% 659,411,70 65,941,170 2.52% 554,127 48 55.412,747.62
Keshari Chand Kucheria 0.51% 132,176.52 13,217,652 0.51% 111.071.02 11,107,102.36
Janardan Dev Pant 0.30% 78,717.64 7,871,764

Foreign ownership (Promoter’

International Finance Corporation 7.54% 1,970,449.19 197,044,919 7.54% 1,655,839.66 165,583,965.67
Grameen Trust 1.56% 406.264.93 40,626,493 1.56% 341,399.10 34,139,909.76
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4.25 Reserves
Following reserves are maintained by the Financial Institution.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Statutory gencral reserve 1,171,190,311 1,137.198,688
Capital reserve 2,574,621 5,045,296
Exchange equalization reserve 709,566 709,566
Investment adjustment reserve 1,510,000 1,510,000
Corporate social responsibility reserve 3,629,040 9,577,888
Client Protection Fund 145,691,556 170,392,734
Capital redemption reserve - -
Regulatory reserve 674,572,806 488,948,193
Asset revaluation reserve - -

Fair value reserve - -

Dividend equalization reserve - -

Reschedule & Restructure Reserve 298,403,345 =

Actuarial Gain 80,845,810 86,466,678

Special reserve - -

Other reserve -
Institutional Development Fund 152,247 152,247
Employee Training Fund 57.420,649 44,782,125

Total 2,436,699,951 1,944,783,414

Statutory General Reserve

General Reserve is maintained as per the regulatory requirements. This is regulatory requirement to set aside 20% of the
net profit after tax as general reserve to build up the capital until the reserve fund balance is twice the paid-up share capital
and thereatter minimum 10% of the net profit after tax. This is the restricted reserve and cannot be freely used.

Capital Reserve
Capital Reserve comprises value of fixed assets received in grant net of accumulated depreciation. Such reserve shall not

be available for distribution of Dividend. No amount has been allocated by the Financial Institution during the year.

Exchange Equalization Reserve
Exchange equalization is maintained as per requirement of NRB Directive, which is 25% of foreign exchange revaluation
gain on the translation to the reporting currency. This reserve is accumulation of such gains over the years.

Investment Adjustment Reserve

Investment Adjustment Reserve is maintained as per requirement of NRB, the amount equivalent to book value of
investment in shares not listed in Recognized Stock Exchange within 2 years from the date of acquisition (for shares of
Prabhu Capital Ltd. amount Rs. 1,500,000 and for Shares of Centre for Micro-Finance Nepal amount Rs. 10,000).

Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve

Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve is created as per NRB Directive, which is set aside of 1% of net profit. The
balance in the reserve is the amount which is not exhausted in the current fiscal year to be utilized for corporate social
responsibility objective in the coming years, details of which is presented in table below:-

Particulars Amount
1. Opening Balance 9,577,888
2. Expenses during F.Y 2079/080 7,648,429
3. Allocation in F.Y 2079/080 1,699,581
4. Closing Balance (1-2+3) 3,629,040
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Client Protection Fund
Client Protection Fund is created as per NRB Directive, which is set aside of 1% ofnet profit, details of which is presented

below:-
Particulars Amount
1. Opening Balance 170,392,735
2. Interest Received from FD 8,430,890
3. Expenses during F.Y 2079/80 34,831,650
4. Allocation in F.Y 2079/80 1,699,581
As per NRB Directive (1%) 1,699,581
Additional 25% 0
5. Closing Balance (1+2-3+4) 145,691,556
Regulatory Reserve

Regulatory Reserve is created due to changes in the NFRS Conversion and adoption with effect in the retained earnings of
the Financial Institution. Regulatory Reserve includes Deferred Tax Reserve, Actuarial Gain /(losses), Accrued Interest
Receivable and Others (Balances out of Restatement of Previous Year Figures). The balance in the reserve amounting Rs.
674.572,805.93 is the amount which is not exhausted in the current fiscal year to be utilized for Regulatory objective in
the coming years.
Details regarding change in Regulatory Reserve is presented below:-
1. Actuary Reserve
Actuary Reserve was created Rs. -69,119,763 in FY 74-75, Rs. -30,581,709 in FY 75-76, Rs. -45,930,452 in FY
76-77, Rs. 37,795,381 in FY 77-78 and Rs. 86,466,678 in FY 78-79. Cumulative figure of Rs. -21,369,865 was
created as Actuary Reserve till FY 78-79. Accumulated actuarial gain till Ashad end 2080 is Rs. 115,494,015.
Since, there is cumulative actuarial gain, no regulatory reserve need to be created in this regard. Therefore
appropriate adjustment (Rs. 21,369,865) has been made to revise Actuary Reserve.
2. Other Regulatory Reserve
a. Other Reserve (Staff loan interest income net of tax):
Other Reserve (Staff loan interest income net of tax) was created Rs. 74,758,134 in FY 77-78 and Rs.
15,622,407 in FY 78-79. Cumulative figure of Rs 90,380,541.08 was created as Other Reserve (Staff loan
interest income net of tax) till FY 78-79. Since, this is not the part of Regulatory Reserve, appropriate
adjustment has been made to revise Other Reserve (Staff loan interest income net of tax).
b. Other Reserve (Previous year gratuity):
Other Reserve (Previous year gratuity) was created Rs. 48,009,213.00 in FY 76-77. Since it has been
addressed through Actuarial Valuation treatment, the above reserve has been revised in this Fiscal Year.

Summary of'the changes has been presented as below:

S.No. Particulars Reserve Required Adjustment
Maintained Reserve
earlier

1. Actuary Reserve (21,369,865) 0 21,369,865

2 Other Reserve (Staff loan 90,380,541 0 (90,380,541)
interest income net of tax)

3. Other Reserve(Previous year 48,009,213 0 (48.,009,213)
gratuity)

Fair Value Reserve
The Fair Value Reserve is created against the valuation of the investment made as per the fair valuation of the investment
made, quoted as available for sale investments. During the year no fair value reserve is maintained.
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Reschedule & Restructure Reserve
Reschedule & Restructure Reserve is created as per NRB Direction as a separate reserve for amount of Loan Loss
provision(Net of Tax) that has been reversed due to Rescheduling and Restructuring of Loans during FY 2079-80.

The total amount of loan Rs. 2,201,125,721 has been Rescheduled and Restructured during FY 2079-80 and Impairment
of Rs. 426,290,493 pertaining to such Rescheduling and Restructuring has been reversed accordingly. Reschedule &
Restructure Reserve of Rs. 298,403,345 (Net of Tax of above reversal) has been maintained as per NRB Direction.

Actuarial Gain Reserve

The Actuarial Gain Reserve is a financial provision set aside to account for favourable changes in actuarial assumptions
such as improvements in mortality rates or investment returns, which impact the estimated future obligations of employee
benefits. Accumulated actuarial gain till Ashad end 2080 is Rs. 115,494,015, therefore actuarial gain reserve for Rs.
80,845,810 has been maintained.

Other Reserves

Other Reserves includes reserve created for Employee Training Fund and Institutional Development Fund. Employee
Training Fund is created as per the NRB Directive, the allocation is utilized in the current year and remaining balances is
transferred to be utilized for training expenses in coming years. Due to Covid, no expenses incurred during the year.
However, as per NRB Circular, it is not mandatory to expense for current year. Therefore, the Financial Institution has not
transferred any amount to this reserve for current year.

Retained Earning

Retained Earnings is cumulative net income that has been earned over time, minus any dividend or distributions paid to
Shareholders.

Re-stated Retained Earning of Rs. 691,742,461 for FY 2078-79 is the amount after adjustment of Acturial Gain Reserve
(Rs. 87,419,030) and Regulatory Reserve (Rs. 117,019,889),both pertaining to FY 2078-79. Furthermore, Rs. 129,133,856
has been adjusted in Retained Earning during this year due to NFRS treatment of Staff Housing Loan. The closing amount
of Retained Earning of Rs -357,515,437 for FY 2079-80 is cumulative net income that has been earned over time minus
dividend (Rs. 21,950,250) and distributions (Rs. 417,054,750) paid to Shareholders. The detailed flow for Retained
Earning has also been presented in Statement of change of Equity.

4.26 Contingent liabilities and commitments
Contingent liabilities include Litigation in Large Tax Payers Office, the amount which is not acknowledged as liability by
the Financial Institution.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Contingent liabilities - -
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities - -
Capital commitment - -
Lease Commitment - -
Litigation 4,998,540 4,998,540

Others - -
Total 4,998,540 4,998,540
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4.26.1 Capital commitments
The Financial Institution does not have any Capital Commitments.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the institution but provision has not been made in financial
statements.

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment

Approved and contracted for - -
Approved but not contracted for - -
Sub Total - -

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for - -
Approved but not contracted for - -
Sub Total - -
Total - -

4.26.2 Lease commitments

Particulars Previous Year

Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease, where

the institution is lessee

Not later than | year - -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - -
Later than 5 years - -
Sub Total - -

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease, where

the institution is lessee

Not later than 1 year - -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - -
Later than 5 years - -
Sub Total

Grand Total

4.26.3 Litigation
The Financial Institution has currently Contingent Liability of Rs. 49,98,540 related to Income Tax in Large Tax Payers
Office.

4.27 Interest Income

Interest Income includes interest income on loans and advances to customers and staffs, investment securities except on
those investment securities measured at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalent, placement with banks
and financial institutions and interest income on gratuity fund.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Cash and cash equivalent 96,102,351 35,107,863
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Placement with bank and financial institutions - -
Loans and advances to financial institutions - -
Loans and advances to customers 3,809,309,609 3,865,696,653

Investment securities 17.490,004 14,285,754
Loans and advances to staff 37.877,608 28,504,080
Other - -

Total interest income 3,960,779,572 3,943,594,350
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4.28 Interest Expense

Interest Expenses include interest on deposits collected and interest on borrowings.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Due to bank and financial institutions - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Deposits from customers 1,342,556,788 1,247,642,010
Borrowing 659,378,248 579,682,295
Debt securities issued - -
Subordinated habilities - -
Other E 5
Total interest expense 2,001,935,036 1,827,324,305

4.29 Fees and Commission Income

Fees and commission incomes is generally recognized when the services has been provided. Service fees on loans is
recognized as fees and commission income by the Financial Institution and the same is recognized upfront and is not
deferred with the tenure of loan.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Loan administration fees - -
Service fees 90,518,119 217,237,318

Commitment Fees " “
Card Issuance Fees & -
Prepayment and swap fees - -
Remittance fees 359,237 48,610,199

Brokerage Fees - -
Other fees and commission income 50,629,793 16,873,996
Total Fees and Commission Income 141,507,149 282,721,513

4.30 Fees and Commission Expense
Fees and Commission Expenses include remittance fees and commission.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Brokerage = 3
ATM management fees = 5
Visa Master card Fees - =
Guarantee Commission Fees = 5
DD/TT/Swift Fees = 3
Remuittance fees and commission 5,769,078 1,863,754

Other fees and commission expense - -
Total Fees and Commission Expense 5,769,078 1,863,754

4.31 Net Trading Income

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Changes in fair value of trading assets = -
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets - -
[nterest income on trading assets - -
Dividend income on trading asscts - -
Gain/loss foreign exchange transaction - -
Other - -

Net trading income - -
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4.32 Other Operating Income
Other Operating Income include loss on sale of Property and Equipment.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Foreign exchange revaluation gain - -
(Gain/(loss) on sale of investment securities - (2,266,042)
Fair value gain/loss on investment propertics - -
Dividend on equity instruments 168,822 3,018,036
Gain/(loss) on sale of property and equipment (8,682) (598,713)

Gain/(loss) on sale of investment property - -
Operating lease income - -
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver -
Other- Grant Income 2,253,855 -
Total 2,413,995 153,281

4.33 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

Loans and advances are assessed individually and collectively as per incurred loss model which is compared with the loan
loss provision prescribed by NRB Directive. Higher of loss as per incurred loss model and NRB directive is considered
for impairment. Accrued Interest Receivable on loans and Loans provided to employees have been considered under Loans
and Advances measured at Amortized Cost.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/Fls - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer 875,980,527 246,297,360

Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment - -
[mpairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and financial - -
institutions

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment - -
[mpairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties - -
Total 875,980,527 246,297,360

4.34 Personnel Expense
Expenses related to employees ofthe Financial Institution are included under this head. Gratuity expense of previous year
restated to match with expense of actuary report.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Salary 444 038,024 446,050,775
Allowances 236,937,184 248,298,612
Gratuity expense 34,053,477 49,229,798
Provident fund 31,491,858 32,543,929
Uniform 6,736,250 6,891,500
Training & development expense 13,860,141 7,800,739
Leave encashment 7,072,277 15,006,869
Medical - -
Insurance 21,976,144 22,585,022

Employees incentive - -
Cash-settled share-based payments - -
Pension expense -
Finance expense under NFRSs 26,527,593 -

Other expenses related to staff 25,186,221 -
Sub Total 847,879,170 828,407,243
Employees bonus - 118,257,051
Grand total 847,879,170 946,664,294
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4.35 Other operating expense
Operating Expense other than those relating to personnel expenses are recognized and presented in this head.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Directors' fee 761,000 491,500
Directors' expense 421,161 377,022
Auditors' remuneration 1,291,000 500,000
Other audit related expense - -
Professional and legal expense 301,145 1,702,932
Office administration expense 71,037,347 67,749,728
Operating lease expense 106,632 42,153,126
Operating expense of investment properties - -
Corporate social responsibility expense - 9,811,118
Client Protection expenses - -
Onerous lease provisions - -
Other - -
Total 73,918,305 122,785,426

4.35.1 Office Administration Expense

Current Year

Previous Year

Particulars

Water and electricity 4,207,957 4,400,970
Repair and maintenance

(a) Building - -

(b) Vehicle 453,200 541,871

(c¢) Computer and accessories 238,880 355,094

(d) Office equipment and furniture 27,070 -

(e) Other 1,235,822 1,393,371
Insurance 5,124,469 5,088,305
Postage, telex, telephone, fax 5,705,394 9,996,384
Printing and stationery 10,559,502 10,408,197
Newspaper, books and journals 415,993 478,060
Advertisement 264,079 235,197
Donation - -
Security expense 656,304 596,640
Deposit and loan guarantee premium - -
Travel allowance and expense 26,582,479 20,745,282
Entertainment 4,648,105 4,552,171
Annual/special general meeting expense 175,785 52,173
Other 10,742,309 8,906,015
Total 71,037,347 67,749,728

4.36 Depreciation & Amortization
Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. Depreciation includes

depreciation on property and equipment.
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Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Depreciation on property and equipment 16,266,623 15,558,782
Depreciation on investment property 35,076,781

Amortization of intangible assets - -

Total 51,343,404 15,558,782

4.37 Non-Operating Income
Incomes that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions are presented under this head.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Recovery of loan written off 782,992 484,472
Other mcome - -

Total 782,992 484,472

4.38 Non-Operating Expense
Expenses that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions are presented under this head.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Loan written off 4,754,859 2,146,241
Redundancy provision - -
Expense of restructuring - -

Other expense

Total 4,754,859 2,146,241

4.39 Income Tax Expense
The Financial Institution has calculated current tax on the basis of self-assessment as per Income Tax Act, 2058.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Current tax expense 362,153,786 337,137,275
Current year 312,350,347 329,787,437
Adjustments for prior years 49,803,439 7,349,838
Deferred tax expense (288,208,570) (22,907,134)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (288.,208,570) (22,907,134)

Changes in tax rate
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses - -
Total income tax expense 73,945,216 314,230,140

Current tax comprises the amount of income taxes payable (or recoverable) in respect ofthe taxable profit (or loss) for the
reporting period amounting to Rs. 312,350,347, and amount adjusted to the tax payable (or receivable) in respect of
previous years 2075/76 Rs. 46,180,291 and in respect of previous years 2078/79 Rs. 3,623,147.91, total amounting Rs.
49.803,438.91 .

4.39.1 Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Profit before tax 243,903,330 1,064.313.456
Tax amount at tax rate of 30 % 73,170,999 319,294,037
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 312,646,846 98,790,122
Less: Tax effect on exempt income (67,479,299) (88,296,722)
Add: Tax effect on other items (238,405,131) (15,557,296)
Total income tax expense 79,933,415 314,230,140
Effective Tax Rate 33% 30%

£N
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 Asar 2080

Particulars

Current Year

Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 169,958,114

Appropriations:

a. General reserve 33,991,623

b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund -

c. Capital redemption reserve -

d. Corporate social responsibility fund 1,699,581

e. Employees' training fund 12,638,524

f. Client Protection Fund 1,699,581

g. Other 5
-Transfer from CSR 129,133,856
-Adjustment in Retained Earning
-Share related expenses -
-Transfer from Fair Value Reserve -
-Restructure and Reschedule Reserve Created 298,403,345

Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment (307,608,396)

Regulatory adjustment:

a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) 49,492,288

b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+) -

¢. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+) -

d. Short loan loss provision on Non-Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+) -

e. Deferred tax assets recognized (-)/ reversal (+) 253,152,215

f. Goodwill recognized (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+) -

g. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal (+) -

h. Actuarial loss recognized (-)/reversal (+) 21,369,865

i. Other (+/-) (138,389,754)

Regulatory Reserve for the year 185,624,613

Remained Retained Earning for Previous year 135,717,572

Distributable profit or (loss) (357.515,437)

5. Disclosures & Additional Information

5.1 Risk Management & Risk Management Framework

Risk is inherent in the Financial Institution’s activities but is managed through a process of ongoing identification,
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the
Financial Institution’s continuing profitability and each individual within the Financial Institution is accountable for the
risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Bank is mainly exposed to;

1. Liquidity Risk

2. Interest Rate Risk

3. Credit Risk

4.  Operational Risk
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Financial Institution’s risk
management framework. Risk Committee is responsible for overall risk management of the Financial Institution which
includes managing, assessing, identifying, monitoring and reducing pertinent macro and micro-economic level business
risks that could interfere with Financial Institution’s objective and goals and whether the Financial Institution’s is in
substantial compliance with its internal operating policies and other applicable regulations and procedures, external, legal,
regulatory or contractual requirements on a continuous basis. Further, Risk Committee ensures integration of all major
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risk in capital assessment process. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed annually to reflect changes in
market conditions, products and services offered. The Financial Institution, through its training and management standards
and procedures, continuously updates and maintains a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all
employees are assigned and made to understand their respective roles and responsibilities.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Financial Institution will encounter difficulties in meeting its financial commitments that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Hence the Financial Institution may be unable to meet its payment
obligations when they fall due under both normal and stress circumstances. To limit this risk, management has arranged
diversified funding sources in addition to its core deposit base, and adopted a policy of continuously managing assets with
liquidity in mind and of monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The Financial Institution has
formulated separate liquidity risk management policy and developed internal control processes and contingency plans for
managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the availability of high-grade
collateral which could be used to secure additional funding if required.

The Financial Institution maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets assumed to be easily liquidated in
the event of an unforeseen interruption of expected cash flow. The Financial Institution also has committed lines of credit
that could be utilized to meet liquidity needs. Further, the Financial Institution maintains a statutory deposit with the Nepal
Rastra Bank equal to approx. 2.16% of customer local deposits. In accordance with the Financial Institution’s policy, the
liquidity position is assessed and managed under a variety of scenarios, giving due consideration to stress factors relating
to both the market in general and specific to the Financial Institution. The most important of these is to maintain the
required ratio of liquid assets to liabilities, to meet the regulatory requirement. Liquid assets consist of cash, short-term
bank deposits and liquid debt sccuritics available for immediate sale.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest Rate Risk includes risk arising due to adverse movements in the interest rates and equity price. Our exposure to
interest rate risk arises predominantly from customer driven transactions. The Financial Institution focuses on risk
management in compliance with Risk Management Guidelines prescribed by NRB, also by addressing interest rate risk in
regular interval to strengthen the risk management. The interest rate risk is managed within the risk tolerances and market
rate risk set by ALCO.

Credit Risk

The risk of potential loss because of counterparty failure to meet its obligations to pay the credit obtained from Financial
Institution as per the agreed terms is known as credit risk. A loan application form which has been used by Institution,
includes all the relevant data and information required for assessment of borrowers” background, business and experience,
financial statement of borrower, credibility, sector wise analysis etc.

Operational Risk

"Operational risk is the risk of losses arising from failed internal processes, systems failure, human error, fraud or external
events. When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory
implications, or lead to financial loss. Strategic and Reputational Risks are not covered in Operational Risk.

Effective operational risk management systems aims to minimizing losses and customer dissatisfaction due to failure in
processes, focusing on flows in products and their design that can expose the Financial Institution to losses due to fraud,
analyzing the impact of failures in technology / system, developing plans to meet external shocks that can adversely impact
continuity in the Financial Institution’s operations. The Financial Institution has introduced a "comprehensive operational
risk monitoring and reporting framework" as well as "output checking" at all branches covering all transactions on daily
basis to minimize operational risk."
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One of the growing risks among others these days is Operations Risk that arises out of inefficient processes and people
inside and outside the Financial Institution. Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) is the management
committee where operating risk, market risk and other risks are discussed, in line with ALM Policy. Information and
Technology Division in the Financial Institution reviews and checks the security aspects in line with IT Policy of the
Financial Institution. Financial Institution has conducted an IS Audit of the Financial Institution’s system and suggestions
given by the audit with respect to safety and security standards are being put in place.

" Financial Institution has separate division to oversee operation risk including Compliance of KYC and AML. The
division is headed by senior level staff with adequate access to the daily report, operational processes and right to
recommend the changes in the system and procedures. All the activities are undertaken in line with the set criteria in the
Standing Instruction Manual, policies and guidelines including Directives and circulars from central bank (the regulatory
authority). Similarly daily functions at operations are independently reported through separate reporting line other than
business generation and credit risk where independence of checking and control is complied with.

Fair Value of Financial Assets & Liabilities

Financial Instruments are recorded at fair value. The following is a description of how fair values are determined for
financial instruments that are recorded at fair value using valuation techniques. These incorporate the Financial
Institution’s estimate of assumptions that a market participant would make when valuing the instruments.

For all financial instruments where fair values are determined by referring to externally quoted prices or observable pricing
inputs to models, independent price determination or validation is obtained. In an inactive market, direct observation ofa
traded price may not be possible. In these circumstances, the Financial Institution uses alternative market information to
validate the financial instrument’s fair value, with greater weight given to information that is considered to be more
relevant and reliable. Financials assets measured at fair value (either through PL or OCI), primarily consisting of quoted
equities and Quoted Mutual Fund units, are valued using the quoted market price in active markets as at the reporting date.
If unquoted, those are carried at cost.

Financial investments - Measured through OCI
Financials assets measured through OCI, primarily consist of quoted equities and Quoted Mutual Fund units ,are valued
using the quoted market price in active markets as at the reporting date. For unquoted securities those are carried at cost.

5.2 Capital Management
Financial Institution shall disclose following information in regard of Capital Management:

i) Qualitative Disclosures

Nepal Rastra Bank has directed the Financial Institution to develop own internal policy, procedures and structures to
manage all material risk inherent in business for assessing capital adequacy in relation to the risk profiles as well as
strategies for maintaining capital levels. This includes basic requirements of having good governance, efficient process of
managing all material risks and an effective regime for assessing and maintaining adequate capital. The Financial
Institution has various BODs approved risk management policies for proper governance.
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ii) Quantitative Disclosures
1. Capital Structure and Capital adequacy
e  Tier 1 capital and breakdown of its components

Particulars

Amount (Rs.)

Paid-up Equity Share Capital

2,612,079,750

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares

Share Premium

510,111

Irredeemable Preference Share

Statutory General Reserve

1,171,190,311

Retained Earnings

(357,515,437)

Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital Adjustment Fund

Calls in Advance

Other Free Reserves

Deductions

424,776,747

a. Goodwill

b. Deferred Tax Assets

416,371,747

¢. Investment on shares and securities in excess of limits

d. Investment to the company having financial interest

e. Fictitious assets

8,405,000

f. Investment on land and building for self-use not complying the Directives of NRB
g. Investment on land development and housing construction in excess of limits -
h. Underwriting shares not sold within stipulated time -
i. Credit and other facilities banned by the prevailing laws -
Total Tier 1 Capital 3,001,487,988
e  Tier 2 capital and breakdown of its components
Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Provisions of loan loss made for pass loan 469,012,785
Additional loan loss provision -
Hybrid capital instruments -
Unsecured Subordinated Term Debt -
Exchange Equalization Fund 709,566
Asset revaluation Fund (max. 2% of Supplementary capital is added automatically) -
Investment adjustment Fund 1,510,000
Total Tier 2 Capital 471,232,351

e Detailed Information about Subordinated Term Debts

The Financial Institution does not have any subordinated term debts.

e  Total qualifying capital
Total Tier 1 Capital 3.001,487.988
Total Tier 2 Capital 471,232,351
Total Qualifying Capital 3,472,720,338

e (Capital Adequacy Ratio
Core Capital Ratio 10.56%
Capital Adequacy Ratio 12.22%
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e  Risk Weighted Exposures

Particulars Weight Amount (Rs.) RWA
(%)

A. On-Balance Sheet Items

Cash Balance 0 38,008,253 -

NRB Balance 0 433,404,153 -

Investment to Govt. Bond 0 290,000,000 -

Accrued interests on Govt. bond 0 3,488,306 -

Ba]z_mt:f: on domestic banks and financial 20 96,450,128 19,290,026

institutions

Money at call 20 1,187,914,213 237,582,843

Investment on shares/debentures/bonds 100 3,510,000 3,510,000

Loans & advances, bills purchase/discount 100 26.,501,974,240 26,501,974,240

Fixed assets 100 260,575,309 260,575,309

Other assets (Except advance tax payment) 100 804,684,898 804,684,898

Total of On-Balance Sheet Items (A) 29,620,069,500 27.827,617.316

B. Off-Balance Sheet Items

Off-Balance-sheet Items 100 4,998,540 4,998,540

Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 100 592,401,390 592,401,390

Total of Off-Balance Sheet Items (B) 597,399,930 597,399,930

Total Risk Weighted Exposure (A+B) 30,217,469,430 28,425,017,246

iii) Compliance with external requirement

"The Financial Institution has complied with externally imposed capital requirements to which it is subject and
there are no such consequence where the institution has not complied with those requirement."

5.3 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial instruments are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair value or at amortized cost. The summary of
significant accounting policies describes how the classes of financial instruments are measured, and how income and
expenses, including fair value gains and losses, are recognized. The following table analyses the carrying amounts of
the financial instruments by category as defined in NAS 39.

Particulars

FVTPL

Amortized Cost

Measured at

Total

Financial Assets

0OCI

Cash and Cash Equivalents - 1,822,432,593 = 1,822,432,593
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - 436,892,459 - 436,892,459
Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -

Loans and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives - - - -

Loans and Advances to Customers = 24,312,643,330 - 24.312,643,330
Financial Investments - Measured at Fair Value Through PL - - - -
Financial Investments - Measured at Fair Value Through OCI - - - -
Financial Investments - Measured at Amortized Cost - 290,000,000 - 290.000,000.00
Other Financial Assets - - - -

Total Financial Assets - 26,861,968.382 - 26,861,968,382
Financial Liabilities

Due From Customers - 19,114,293,315 - 19,114,293,315
Other Financial Liabilities - 3,946,721,839 - 3,946,721,839
Other Liabilities & = = s

Total Financial Liabilities - 23,061,015,153 - 23,061,015,153
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5.4 Operating Segment Information

1. General Information

(a) Factors that management used to identify the entity’s reportable segments

The Financial Institution’s operation is provincially decentralized and duly managed. However strategic and financial
policies are monitored and directed from the Head Office. The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in
line with the accounting policies of the Company, NFRS 8 ‘Segment Reporting” and Unified Directives to Microfinance,
2079 as issued by NRB.

1) Revenue and Expenses have been identified to a segment based on relationship to operating activities of the segment.
Revenue and Expenses which relates to the Institution as a whole and are not allocable to a segment on a reasonable basis
have been disclosed as “Unallocated”.

ii) Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities represent Assets and Liabilities in respective segments. Investments, tax-related
assets, and other assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated to a segment on a reasonable basis have been disclosed as
“Unallocated™.

iif) Operating segments that do not meet the quantitative threshold as defined in NFRS 8 have been aggregated under the
Other Segments. Operating segments not meeting the quantitative threshold and still considered reportable by the

management have been disclosed separately. Aggregation is consistent with the core principle of NFRS.

(b) Description of the types of products and services from which each reportable segment derives its revenues
Each segment provides microfinance services such as Loans, Deposits, Micro-Insurance, and Remittance services to low-
income families of Nepal. The above mentioned are the main source of revenue for each operating segment.

2. Information about profit or loss, assets, and liabilities

Particulars

Koshi

Madhesh

Bagmati

Gandaki

Lumbini

Karnali

Other

Total

Revenues from external customers 389291492 | 1,188274,723| S514.828481| 184,636,404 |1,051,144,156| 233,418,853 | 1.697,553,777.64 | 5,259,147 886
Intersegment revenues

Net Revenue 389201492 | 1188274723 514.828.481| 184,636,404 |1,051,144,156| 233,418,853 1,697,553.778 | 5,259,147.886
Interest Revenue 377385902 | L160,704.305| 498215472 161,032,455 | 980,213,488 | 223,048,623 | 560,179,326.66 | 3.960,779.571
Interest Expense 120445466 | 336,746,032 | 1758447131 83,128,611 411,519,694 | 82,178,240 | 792,072.280.73 | 2,001,935,036
Net Interest Revenue 256,940,437 | 823958273 | 322370.759 77.903.844 | 568,693,794 | 140,870,384 (231,892,954)] 1,958 844,536
Depreciation and Amortization 327804551 | 9,039,57434| 4456,787.69| 2,117,816.53 |10,673.296.59 | 2,193,581.68 |  19,584.301.20 | 51,343,404
Segment Profit / (Loss) (4246 375)(  (449,349403)|  (86,973377T)|  5.857.390 | 47336743 | (68,982,665) 726,315801.14 | 169,958,114
Other material non-cash items: -
Loan Loss Provisions Expenses 67,621,281 | 630.298.257| 166,293,490 25,333,079 | 203,133,469 | 103,986,219 | (320,685,267.39)| B75,980.527
Goodwill Amortization -
Others Intangible Assets Amortization| -
Impairment of Assets -
Segment Assets 1,782,709218 | 4916,018,541 | 2,423,748,077| 1,151,738 449 | 5,804,490,559 | 1,192.942,034 | 10,650,588,642 46 | 27,922 235520
Segment Liabilities 1,786,955,593 | 5,365,367,944| 2,510,721,454| 1,145,881,059 | 5,757,153,816 | 1,261.924,699 | 5,402,456,580.81 | 23,230,461,146

@

3. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities
(a) Basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments.
Interest earnings generated while conducting businesses under different segments are reported under the
respective segment. Equity and Tax Expense are not allocated to the individual segments. For segmentation
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purpose, all business transactions of offices and business units located in a particular province are grouped
together.

Nature of any differences between the measurements of the reportable segments’ profits or losses and the

Nature of any differences between the measurements of the reportable segments’ assets and the entity’s

Nature of any changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to determine reported segment

(b)
entity’s profit or loss before income tax.
None

(c)
asset.
None

(d)
profit or loss and the effect, if any, and
None

()

Nature and effect of any asymmetrical allocations to reportable segments.

None

4. Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

a) Revenue

Total revenues from reportable segment

3,561,594,108

Other Revenues

1,697,553,778

Elimination of intersegment revenues

5,259,147,886

Entity's Revenue

b) Profit or Loss
Total profit or loss for reportable segments (556,357,687)
Other profit or loss -
Elimination of intersegment profits -
Unallocated amounts 726,315,801
Profit before income tax 169,958,114

¢) Assets

Total assets for reportable segments

17,271,646,878

Other Assets

10,650,588,642

Unallocated amounts

Entity's assets 27.,922,235,520
d) Liabilities

Total Liabilities for reportable segments 17.828,004,565

Other Liabilities -

Unallocated Liabilities 5,402.456,581

Entity’'s liabilities 23,230,461,146
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5. Information about product and services

p—

Revenue from each type of product and services

(a) Microfinance Related Services 5,259,147,886

(b) Others -

Total 5,259,147,886
6. Information about geographical areas

Revenue from following geographical areas

(A)Domestic

(a) Koshi Province 389,291,492

(b) Madhesh Province 1,188,274,723

(c) Bagmati Province 514,828.481

(d) Gandaki Province 184,636,404

(e) Lumbini Province 1,051,144,156

(f) Karnali Province 233,418,853

(g) Sudur Paschim Province 365,399,960

(h) Others 1,332,153,818

(B)Foreign -

Total 5,259,147,886

7. Information about major customers

Disclosure related to major customers is not applicable as no revenue from a single external customer amount to 10

percent or more of the entity's revenue.

5.5 Share options and share based payment
Not Applicable.

5.6 Contingent liabilities and commitment
The Standard defines a contingent lability as:

¢ A possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity: or

¢ A present obligation that arises from events but is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or

e The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. An entity should not recognize a
contingent liability. An entity should disclose a contingent liability, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote.

Details of contingent liability are as follows:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Contingent liabilities - -
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities = =
Capital commitment - -
Lease Commitment " "

Litigation 4.,998,540.00 4,998.540.00
Others - =
Total 4,998,540.00 4,998,540.00

G
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5.7 Related Party Disclosures

In the ordinary course of its business operation the Institution has conducted commercial transactions with parties who are
defined as related parties in NAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures™. All those transactions were conducted on an arm’s length
price basis.

5.7.1 Board Member Allowances and Facilities The chairperson and other members of the Board are paid NPR 8000
and NPR 7000 respectively per meeting.

The Board of Directors (BOD) has been paid total meeting fees of NPR 5,09,000 during the reportable financial year. The
BOD had held total of fourteen Board Meetings during the period.

The meeting fees paid to different Board Level Committees are as follows:

-" | gfterElt ot FRaET 2068/T0

Board Level Committees No. of Meetings Meeting Allowances (NPR)

Audit Committee 7 91,000

Risk Management Committee 8 112,000

Human Resource Committee 3 21,000

AML Committee 4 28,000

Other Commiittee (Building Construction)

Total 22 252,200
While conducting Board Meetings, the following Board Meeting Expenses has been incurred:

S. No Particulars Amount (NPR)

1 Communication Expenses 108,000

2 Bus & Air Fare Expenses 74,400

3 Tiffin & Miscellaneous Expenses 238,761

Total 421,161

5.7.2 Loans and Advances extended to Promoters
There are no such benefits extended to Promoters.
5.7.3 Disclosure of a classified list of all related parties

Followings have been identified as related parties for “Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited”, under NAS
24 “Related Party Disclosures™:

KMP Position

Mr. Janardan Dev Pant Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Raj Narayan Das Assistant General Manager

Mr. Ram Bahadur Chaudhary Assistant General Manager, Company Secretary

Where the Key Management Personnel (KMP) are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise)
of that entity. KMP includes Managing Director, Whole time Directors, Chief Finance Officer and Company Secretary.
While identifying related party relationship attention is directed to the substance of the relationship and not merely the
legal form.
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5.7.4 Compensation details for Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Key Management Personnel includes members of the Executive Committee of the Institution.

Particulars Amount
Short-term employee benefits 8,032,103
Post-employment benefits 12,244,030
Other long-term benefits 1,869,046
Termination benefits -
Share-based payment -
Total 22,145,179
The salary and benefits paid to Key Management Personnel other than directors are as follows:
Name Position Basic Provident Allowance Bonus & Other Total
Salary Fund welfare Perquisites Income
Mr. Janardan Dev Pant C.EO 2,088,000 208,800 1,692,000 626,872 288411 4,904,083
Mr. Raj Narayan Das A.GM 331,608 38,637 841,016 317.887 823,311 2,352,459
Mr. Ram Bahadur Chaudhary AGM.Company 969,872 96,987 826,439 277,928 147,318 2,318,544
Secretary

Key Management Personnel are also provided with the following benefits:
L Benefits as per the Employee Terms of Service By-Laws,
ii. Bonus to the staffas per The Bonus Act,
il Vehicle Fuel Expenses as per Institution’s Staff Vehicle Scheme.

Existing members of Executive Committee include:

Name Positions Held As/In

Mr. Janardan Dev Pant

Chief Executive Officer

HR Committee; AML Committee

Mr. Hari Krishna Pant

Board Member

Audit Committee; Risk Committee

Mr. Santosh Kumar Bhattarai

Board Member

Audit Committee; Risk Committee

Mr. Top Bahadur Rayamajhi

Board Member

AML Committee

Mr. Sundar Bastola

Board Member

Audit Committee; Risk Committee

Mr. Devendra Bahadur Raut

Board Member

HR Committee

HR Committee

Company Secretary; HR Committee
AML Committee

HR Committee

Risk Committee

Audit Committee

Mr. Raj Narayan Das

Mr. Ram Bahadur Chaudhary
Mr. Mukesh Dahal

Mr. Narayan Bahadur Karki
Mr. Narayan Prasad Neupane
Mr. Lekhnath Neupane

Assistant General Manager
Assistant General Manager
Head of Department
Head of Department
Head of Department
Head of Department

5.7.5 Transactions with Subsidiary and Associates Companies.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity, but is not
control over those policies. As per NAS 28 “Investments in Associates & Joint Ventures”, while computing significant
influence potential voting power is taken into account. Existence of significant influence is evidenced by the existence of
one or more of the following:

i Representation in the Board of Directors;

ii. Participation in the policy making process including dividend distribution and other appropriation of profit;
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fii. Material transaction between the investor and the investee;
iv. Interchange of managerial personnel; and
VA Provision for essential managerial transaction.

By virtue of representation in the Board of Directors of Nepal Finsoft Company Limited, the Institution has significant
influence in the Board of Directors of the said entity. But no any financial transactions has been executed during the year.

Additional Disclosures:

Statement of Profit or Loss

Transaction with Related Parties

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Interest Income - -
Interest Expenses 304,550,200 234.911,095

Other Income

Other Expenses

Dividend Income(net)

Statement of Financial Position

Transaction with Related Parties

Earfcnlars 2079-80 2078-79
Total Assets 1,543,791,739 2,500,675,000
Loans and Advances 1,543,791,739 2,500,675,000

Other Receivables

Total Liabilities

Customer Deposits

Other Payables

Commitments and Contingencies

Particulars

Transaction with Related Parties

2079-80

2078-79

Undrawn Credit Limits

Other Contingencies

Total

5.8 Collective Impairment Disclosure

Particulars Collateral Loan Collateral Free Total Impairment
PD 4.87% 3.64%

LGD 17.63% 100.00%

EAD 4,891,742,569 21,610,231,671

Impairment 42,041,235 786,196,046 828,237,280

Since Individual impairment is higher than collective impairment for FY 2079-80, effect of Individual impairment has

been considered in Books of Accounts.
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5.9 Other Additional Disclosure

1. Housing loans provided to staffs tied up with insurance and bonus amount accrued to the entity has been booked
in line with period of loan. Staff Housing loan has been discounted as per prevailing market rate and
corresponding Assets amounting to Rs. 320,609,650 and Deferred Employee Cost amounting to Rs. 163,185,682
has been recognised in Books of Accounts.

2. Previous EIR method of Housing loan has been changed to method prescribed by NFRS as discounting future
cash flows .

3. Out of the collected service charge amounting to Rs. 294,053.896.50, amount of Rs. 203,534,517.72 has been
refunded to customer Accounts during FY 2089-80 as per NRB Direction.

4, Right-of-use asset and resulting lease liability has been created as per NFRS 16 amounting Rs. 160,025,226
Consequently, depreciation amounting Rs. 35,076,781 on right-of-use asset and finance cost amounting Rs.
13,992,070 on lease liability is charged to statement of profit and loss.

5. We do not have any pending legal cases effecting probable future cash flows other than contingent liabilities
disclosed in of Financial Statements.

5.10 Merger and acquisition
The Financial Institution has not entered into any merger and acquisition activities in the reporting period and in the
comparative previous period.

5.11 Additional disclosures of non-consolidated entities

The Financial Institution does not have any non-consolidated entities to report for the reporting period and in the
comparative previous period.
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Comparison of Unaudited and Audited Finacial Statements
As on 31 Ashad 2080

Statement of Financial Position As per Unaudited Variance Reasons for Variance
Assets Financial tement In Amount In%
Cash and Cash equivalent 1822432003 1,822.432.593 590 0.00%
Statutory Batances and Due from Nepel Rastra Bunk 436,892 459 436,897 459 (0) 0.00%
Placement with Bank & Financial Instinutions - - 0.00%
Dierivative Finencial [nstruments 0.00%
Chher Trading Assets - - 0.00%
Loans and Advances to MFls & Cooperatives - - - 0.00%
Loans and Advances to Customers 24373920343 4312643330 (61, 286,013) 125% Change m Impainrent Caleulation
mvestment Securifies 293,510,000 293,510,000 - 0.00%
Current Tax Assets 120,950,802 75,125,183 (43.825619) 3189 Change in estimations.
Ivestment Property - - - 0.00%
Property and Equipment 135,505,813 260,575,309 124,969,496 92.16% ROU Assets as per NFRS
Goodwill and Intangible assets - - - 0.00%
Dreferred Tax Assets 163,219,532 416,371,747 253,152,215 135.10% Change in estimations
Chier Assets 413,468,507 304,684 898 (108,783,609) 30.31% NFRS treatment of Staff Loans
Total Assets 27,760,008,459 21920235520 162,227,061
Dhiz to Bank and Financial Institiions - - - 0.00%
D o Nepal Rastra Bank 0.00%
Derivative Firancial Instrument - - . 0.00%
Depasits from Customers 19,114,805 952 19,114,293 315 (312,637) 000%  Rectification of emor
Borrowing 3946.721.839 3.946,721.839 {0y 0.00%
Current Tax Liahhities - - - 000%
Provisions - 14.590.102 14,590,102 100.00%  Provision for Staff Advance
Diferred Tax Lighilities - - . 0.00%
(Hher Lighilities 202,570,854 154,855,890 (47,714 .964) -13.35% NFRS treatment of Lease and Employee Benelit
Dieht Securities lssued - - 0.00%
Subordinated Liabilities - - - 0.00%
Total Liabilities 23,264.098,645 23.230,461.146 (33,637,499)
Share Capital 2612079750 2,612.079,750 0.00%
Share Premmm 510,011 5100011 - (.00%
Reteined Eamings 49329,590 (337315437) (406,845,027) -824.73% Change in Profit, rectification of error and NFRS Treatment
Reserves 1,833.990,364 2436699951 602,709,587 3286% Change in Regulatory Reserve
Total Equity 4.495909.815 4.691,774.375 195,864,560
Total Lishilities and Equity 27,760,008, 460 27.022.235520 162,227,060
T T A% Accrued .Jn[cresl r:mgniscd.!.llzaesl income from Staff loan and due to
4007919979 3960,779,572 {47,140.407) some adjustment made in interest income
nterest Expense: 2001935036 2001.,935,036 ] 0.00%
Net Interest Income 2.005,984,943 1,958,844,536 (47,140,407) 2.35%
Fee and Commission ncome 141504276 141,507,149 2873 0.00%
Fee and Commussion Expense 5769078 5769078 {0y 0.00%
Net Fee and Commission [ncome 135,735,198 135,738,072 2874 0.00%
Net [nterest, Fee and Commission [ncome 141,720,141 2,094,582,608 (47,137,533) 2.20%
Net Trading Income - - 0.00%
Other Operating Income (15,6500 2413995 2420645 -15524.89% Rectification of emor
Total (perating Income 141,704,491 1,096,996,602 (44,707,889 200%
[rnpairment charge(reversal) for loans and other Josses 819,517,604 875,980,527 56462863 6.89% Loan Loss Provision Adjustment
Net Operating Income 1.322,186.827 1.221,016,076 (101,170.751) 1.65%
Operating Expense 0.00%
Personne] Expenses 60,326,224 847,879,170 (21.4471054) -147 NFRS Treatment
Other Operating Expenses 123,226,056 T3918305 (49307.731) S0.01% NFRS Treatment : Depreciation of ROU Assets
Depreciation & Amortization 15%35.673 51343404 35507731 14.23% Depreciation of ROU Assets
Operating Profit 313,708,874 47,875,197 (65,923,677) -21.01%
Non Cperating Income 3,205,669 782,992 2422,677) -75.57% Tnterest recognised on Staff Loan due to NFRS Treatment
Non Operating Expense - 4754859 47534859 [00.00% Rectification of emor
Profit before Income Tax 317,004,543 243,903,330 (73,101,213) 23.06%
Income Tax Expense 359734935 73.945.216 (242,028,279 76.60%
Cument Tax 315973493 362,153,786 46,180,201 1462% Change in estimations.
DrFrr_rod Tax - { ESSQU&STU) (288,208,570) 100.00%  Change in estimations.
Profit for the year 1031048 169,958,114 168927066
Profit attributable fo = - -
Equity holders of the Financial Institution 1,031,048 169,958,114 168,927,066 16384.02%
Profit for the year 1031048 169.958.114 168927066
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Number of Centers Number of Active Clients
403,686
397,596
22,179 22,672
19,901 20,742
18,525 S
374,535
355,951 I I
2075/76 2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2075/76 2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80
Number of Loan Clients Loan Disbursed (NRS. In
242,070 Billion)
29.88 30.85 30.25
21.87
223,407
¢ 221,634 222,309
I 219,136 I I 11.85
2075/76 2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2075/76 2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80
Loan Outstanding (NRS. In Savings & Deposits (NRS. In
Billion) Billion)
24.08 2769 25.75
18.18 1911
19.64 20.15
13.34 12
I I 11.05 I
2075/76 2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2075/76 2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80
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=%+ Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Total Assets (NRS. In Billion) Non-Performing Loan (in
Percentage)
28 m
26.54 9.87%
23.82
22,15 I | I I
2075/76 2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2073/80 2075/76 2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80
Shareholders Fund (NRS. In Capital Adequacy Ratio (in
Billion) Percentage)
4.63 4.69
e 13.63%
: 12.22%
i I | II.W
2.43 I
2.18 I
2075/76 2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2075/76  2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80
Average Return on Assets (in Net Profit After Tax (NRS. In
Percentage) Million)
haen 1,188.82

1.12%

0.61%

2075/76  2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2075/76  2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80
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== Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Return on Equity (in Closing Price in Nepse (In NRS)
Percentage) -
32.73%
30.86%

10.55% Hoo

2075/76 2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2075/76 2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80
Earnings Per Share & Dividend Market Capitalization (NRS. In
Per Share (In NRS) Billion)
31.05 27.12

15.12

2075/76  2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80

w=fPS em—DPS 2075/76 2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80
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